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2013 HONG KONG AWARDS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL 2035 A RREMEE - AR
EXCELLENCE - SECTORAL AWARDS - B-BEEX(EBERE)
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Neway Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to the
shareholders the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014 (the “year”).

During the year, the Group recorded a loss mainly due to (i) the
volatile economic conditions in the export and domestic markets of
the manufacturing and sales business which resulted in a decrease
in the number of sales orders placed by customers, (ii) increase in
minimum wages set by the government of the People’s Republic of
China (the “"PRC") and (iii) one-off impairment loss recognised on the
investment in the Republic of Korea.

This year, the Group has taken several important measures to further
diversify into new businesses of money lending, financial leasing and
property development in Hong Kong and the PRC so as to broaden
the future revenue stream of the Group and diversify the risk from
concentrating on any single business.

For the manufacturing and sales business, the Group has endeavoured
to source qualified alternative materials and managed to lower
material costs. It has also invested in increased automation to enhance
efficiency, and diversify its product portfolios to cater for different
group of overseas and domestic customers.

Looking forward, it is expected that the environment in which the
Group operates, especially the manufacturing sector, will remain
tough in the coming financial year with rising operational expenses
in the PRC. For the manufacturing business, the Group will continue
to enhance its cost control and efficiency by better utilisation of
machines and improvement in the existing production processes,
together with the cost tightening policy to closely monitor the
operating costs. Besides, the Group will allocate more resources to
build up business relationships with larger multi-national corporations
and customers with higher potential. Furthermore, the Group will
devote continuous effort in environmental protection to enhance
its competitiveness and consolidate its corporate image as a green
corporate citizen to the community.
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

For the entertainment business, the Group will continue to utilise
its established platform in Hong Kong and the PRC to seek more
business opportunities locally and overseas. In view of the positive
outlook of the trading business, the Group will allocate extra
resources to expand the customer base of this sector. For the newly
developed businesses, especially the money lending and financial
leasing businesses, the management is actively seeking potential
transactions and maximising the synergy effect with other businesses
of the Group. The Group will adopt a prudent strategy to enhance
its business portfolios and continue to deploy resources to other
investment projects with development potential, so as to achieve
sustainable financial growth for the Group and maximise the value of
the shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my appreciation to all shareholders, investors, business
partners and staff for their support and dedication throughout the
year.

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2014 ("Year”), the Group has taken
several important steps to diversify into new businesses of money
lending, financial leasing and property development in Hong Kong
and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). The Group successfully
obtained a money lenders licence in Hong Kong and financial leasing
qualification in the PRC. Besides, the Group completed two property
development acquisitions during the Year in Qingyuan and Chengdu
in the PRC. Such diversification will broaden the revenue stream of the
Group in the future.

Despite the decrease in revenue as compared with last year, gross
profit improved amid inflationary economic environment in the PRC.
For the Manufacturing and Sales business, the Group has devoted
considerable efforts in production materials sourcing and cost saving
for the factories in the PRC and diversifying its customer base. For
the trading business, the Group continued to record a double-digit
increase in revenue during the Year and its role in the Group has
become more significant.

For the Music and entertainment business, the Group organised
a concert for Stephanie Cheng with positive feedback from the
audience and media. Besides, the Group has further expanded its
team of artistes by signing up Julian Cheung Chi-Lam, renewing the
contract with Jade Kwan Sum Yin and inviting a number of artistes,
such as Barry Ip Man Fai and Christopher Wong Oi Kan, to join or
cooperate with the Group. The enlarged artiste base has provided
immediate benefit in terms of song licensing income and artiste
management income to the Music and entertainment business.

With regard to the Securities trading business, the Group has
allocated more financial resources to this segment with the aim of
further utilising its idle capital and diversifying its portfolio in order to
create value for the Group.

For the Property business, the Group completed two acquisitions
during the Year, one of which involved a non wholly-owned
subsidiary in Qingyuan and the other one involved an available-for-
sale investment in Chengdu. The construction works of both projects
are yet to commence as at 31 March 2014. In view of the significant
investment scale, a new reportable business segment of Property
business was presented for the year ended 31 March 2014.

All of the above have further strengthened and broadened the
business portfolio of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and gross profit margin

For the year ended 31 March 2014, total revenue of the Group
decreased by 4.7% to approximately HK$613.3 million (2013:
HK$643.7 million), while gross profit margin increased to 19.4%
(2013: 17.5%).

Manufacturing and Sales business

The Group devoted continuous effort to protect the environment
during the Year. Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
("Chung Tai Printing”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was
awarded the Certificate of Merit of the 2013 Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence organised by the Environmental Campaign
Committee. Chung Tai Printing was also awarded the Hang Seng Pan
Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards — Silver Award in the Hang
Seng Pan Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards jointly organised by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Hang Seng Bank (Bronze
Award was awarded last year).

During the Year, the Group participated in many overseas or PRC
exhibitions and built up business relationships with several well-
known multi-national corporations. Its sales team has spent significant
efforts to maintain good relationships with these corporations which
can benefit to the Group's revenue in future.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, revenue from the Manufacturing
and Sales business decreased by 4.6% to approximately HK$571.5
million (2013: HK$599.1 million). Such decrease was attributable
to the decline in both export and domestic sales during the Year.
The decline in export sales was mainly due to the decrease in the
number of sales orders placed by overseas customers. The decline in
domestic sales was mainly attributable to the decrease in the number
of sales orders placed by a single customer and the termination of
businesses with those customers with low profit margin or high risk of
recoverability problem.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

During the Year, the Group endeavoured to source and test the quality
of alternative materials from the PRC, which, together with the refund
of partial of value-added taxes related to direct export sales, has
resulted in the lowering of the material cost of the Manufacturing
and Sales businesses by approximately 6% as compared with last year.
The saving in materials cost was partially offset by two major external
factors: (i) the increase in labour cost and (ii) the appreciation of
Renminbi. The minimum wages set by the PRC government increased
from RMB1,500 to RMB1,600 in March 2013 and further increased
to RMB1,808 in February 2014 for Shenzhen and Guangdong
Province, which caused the staff costs, including basic and overtime
salaries and salary-related costs to increase. Both factors led to the
drop in segment profit as compared with last year. During the Year,
the Group acquired a new sheet fed offset press machine and some
other supplementary small machines, which are expected to further
enhance production efficiency and enable the Group to diversify its
product portfolio so as to cater for different groups of customers in
the future.

Trading business

Revenue from the Trading business increased by 10.2% to
approximately HK$29.2 million during the Year (2013: HK$26.5
million). The increase was mainly due to the rise in customer demand
for 3M products used in advertisement and the increase in the
number of new customers. Profit margin of the Trading business
decreased by 1.1 percentage point to 5.4% as compared with last
year. Such decrease was mainly due to the increase in the number of
bulk purchase customers, who were offered greater discount, during
the Year.

Music and entertainment business

Broadening the artiste base was one of the key achievements of the
Music and entertainment business in the Year. Apart from signing up
Julian Cheung Chi-Lam and renewing the artiste contract with Jade
Kwan Sum Yin, the Group also co-operated with a number of newly
joined artistes, such as Barry Ip Man Fai, so as to enlarge its revenue
base. The Group also referred management jobs to the management
company to which the Group’s artistes belong and thus recorded
referral income. The expanded artiste base will further strengthen the
revenue base of the Music and entertainment business in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Revenue from the Music and entertainment business decreased by
30.6% to approximately HK$12.5 million as compared with last
year. The revenue mainly consisted of incomes from concerts, shows,
dramas and teleplay investments, artiste management income, album
distribution income, promotion income and song licensing income.
Revenue decreased during the Year as (i) no investment income
from PRC teleplays was recorded during the Year, while that for last
year was approximately HK$3.4 million and (ii) promotion income
decreased by approximately HK$2.2 million as compared to HK$6.2
million last year. The decrease in promotion income was mainly due
to the revision of promotion service package with a related company,
Neway Karaoke Box Limited, during the Year. During the Year, the
Group organised a concert for Stephanie Cheng in Kowloonbay
International Trade & Exhibition Centre and received a positive
feedback from the audience and media. Segment profit decreased
by approximately HK$458,000 which was mainly attributable to the
absence of investment income from PRC teleplays which contributed a
high profit margin of 22.6% last year.

During the Year, the Group obtained the approval from the
independent shareholders of the Company for the non-exercise of the
put option granted by a connected person on 16 June 2009 in respect
of the acquisition of Neway Entertainment Limited and its subsidiaries.

Securities trading business

During the Year, the Group has devoted more financial resources
to the Securities trading segment and subscribed shares of two
companies newly listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
a total amount of HK$60.1 million, details of which were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 16 May 2013, 20
May 2013, 21 May 2013 and 22 May 2013. The Group disposed
of one-half of these shares during the Year with a realised gain of
approximately HK$3.0 million. The gain was offset by the unrealised
loss arising from fair value changes in securities of approximately
HK$5.0 million recorded as at 31 March 2014 due to the high
volatility of the Hong Kong capital market. Such unrealised loss had
no impact on the cash flow of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWR DN

Property business

During the Year, the Group completed two business acquisitions,
one of which involved MJIIZEERFMERR AR ("RERME"),
which is classified as an available-for-sales investment of the Group
and the details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 February 2013, and the other one involved J& &
MHEFHEMEBRAR ("REFEME"), a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Both of the acquired businesses are engaged
in property development and investment in the PRC. HEREHE
and F)EFEHE hold the land use rights of certain commercial land
in Chengdu and Qingyuan respectively. Both of their development
plans cover residential units for sale and shopping malls which will be
either for sale or for lease depending on the market condition upon
the completion of the properties. The construction work on the land
held by H#EREHZE commenced in May 2014 and the pre-sales of
residential units is expected to be launched in the fourth quarter of
2014. For F)EEHE, the application for construction permit with
the relevant government authority is in progress and the company
is still evaluating the profit forecast of various construction plans in
order to maximise the return on the investment. Both construction
projects are expected to be financed by capital contributed by the
respective shareholders and bank borrowings. The management will
closely monitor the development progress of these two projects.

OTHER BUSINESSES

During the Year, the Group established a new indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, EBFEEERMEMEEBRAA ("PEFE"),
in Shanghai with a registered capital of US$20 million, the details of
which were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 22
July 2013. The business scope of 1 2 & #Z includes financial leasing,
leasing services, acquisition, maintenance and disposal of properties
for lease in the PRC and/or abroad, and provision of consultation
and guarantee for lease transactions. 2 & # conducted its first
transaction with another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
Shenzhen for the purpose of financing the acquisition of production
machine by that subsidiary. F1 2 & # did not have other customers
as at 31 March 2014 and the management is seeking business
opportunities in this business area in a cautious manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In addition, the Group established a new indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Grand Prospects Finance International Limited (“Grand
Prospects”) during the Year, the details of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 11 December 2013. Grand
Prospects is a licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During
the Year, Grand Prospects entered into a loan transaction with an
independent third party. A total loan interest income of HK$170,000
was recorded and included in interest income.

The management of the Group will consider disclosing the financial
performance of the above new businesses under new reportable
business segments if these businesses become significant to the
Group.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
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Other gains and losses comprised the following major items: HW s REEBFFENTERIER
2014 2013
—E-F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net foreign exchange gain ANGEE W 2 % BB 231 2,006
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZRBE (281) (246)
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIBIREHERED
doubtful debts - 4,901
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment e (EE) 2,511 (126)
Impairment loss recognised on AHHEREZE®R
available-for-sale investment (Note) BAEREE (K:F) (6,518) (10,240)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RM B AR < W - 14,432
Change in fair value of RIEEERAZ
held-for-trading investments NEEEH (2,043) 59
Total HEt (6,100) 10,786
Note: Wit
The Group has signed a sale and purchase agreement with an independent

third party to dispose of all of its shares in this company subsequent to the
year-end date. The impairment loss was measured at the difference between
the disposal consideration and the net carrying value (before impairment) of
these shares as at 31 March 2014.
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NET (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

For the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded a
net loss for the Year of approximately HK$21.7 million (2013: net
profit of HK$1.7 million) and the net loss margin was 3.5% (2013:
net profit margin of 0.3%).

The loss for the Year was mainly attributable to (i) the absence of
the one-off gain of approximately HK$14.4 million from the disposal
of a subsidiary of the Company, (ii) the absence of the reversal of
allowance for bad and doubtful debts of approximately HK$4.9
million as recorded last year, and (iii) an increase in total staff costs
of approximately HK$21.7 million, which was mainly caused by
the increase in minimum wages set by the PRC government from
RMB1,500 to RMB1,600 in March 2013 and the further increase to
RMB1,808 in February 2014. Such increases in operating costs and
decrease in other gains were offset by (i) the decrease in materials
cost due to greater effort in sourcing and testing the quality of
alternative materials in the PRC and (ii) the reduction in impairment
loss recognised in respect of an available-for-sale investment in the
Republic of Korea.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The following table sets out the Group’s current ratio, quick ratio and
gearing ratio as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013:

AE (FEE) HF

HE_ZT— EE—H—+—E¢%
BEE AEEHEARAFFEEY
21,700,000 (ZE—=F : 4 F|
1,700,000 7T) * M FEE XA R3.5%
—E—ZF A HE03%) o

AEBBEEIERBORIEEERR
%Bﬁﬁ" Az — ‘|*£Ll$zﬁﬁm44ooooo
BT (MR D EFHREZRBREBRER
[5] 494,900,000/ 7T » M (iii) B A A BB AT
%IJEZE%E&IQEEEAE% 500 T =
—:—:—:ﬁ A2z AR®1,6007T 0 WH
—E-MF - RE—FEE ARE1,808
JC @z@ze,amzm*m #4921 ;700,000
B ENAE MR EMKERLE
WA E BT (VAR E R BIF
BERMERARZEMH Z2EEMmRE
D Z MR R (i)Fh KR R B AT 4
ERERRZBEBEERD -

RBEE BXERRELEE

TREIHNAEER -_ZF-FE=A
—t—BR=T—=%5=A E—i— B2
MR BB RN EERBER:

728

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
Notes 2014 2013
Bat 2 —E—=

Current ratio B b & () 4.4 5.9

Quick ratio ERE LR (ii) 3.3 4.9

Gearing ratio (%) EEBELE%) (iii) 2.4 0.2

Notes: =

(i) Current ratio is calculated by dividing total current assets by total 0) BN R T IR R F A B B & E R LAAR R
current liabilities as at the end of the year. BaBEHE-

(ii) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing the difference between total (i) R EDIREBEFRERDEERTE
current assets and inventories (including properties under development (BEFSERTYE) 2 28R AERE
for sale) by total current liabilities as at the end of the year. BEHE-

(iif) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity (iif) BEEABLERDREBEFREEER A ER

as at the end of the year and then multiplying it by 100%.

HEEE B IRIA100%5TE -
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As at 31 March 2014, the Group had short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$232.5 million (2013:
HK$247.4 million) and short-term borrowings of approximately
HK$18.7 million (2013: HK$1.6 million). The Group maintained a
strong and healthy liquidity as compared with last year. A higher
gearing ratio was recorded as at 31 March 2014 mainly due to (i)
the increase in secured bank borrowings and (ii) other borrowings
secured by the machinery of the PRC factory under a finance lease
arrangement for the purpose of providing working capital for its daily
operation. The details of the borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 31 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, the Group has allocated more working capital and
financial resources to the Securities trading segment and Property
business segment. Therefore, the current ratio and quick ratio
decreased to 4.4 and 3.3 respectively as at 31 March 2014.

The Group generally finances its operation with internally-generated
cash flows and facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The Group maintains a high level of working capital,
thus reflecting the strength of its operating performance. Having
considered the anticipated internally-generated funds and available
banking facilities, the Group has adequate resources to meet its future
capital expenditure and working capital requirements. The Group will
continue its prudent policy in managing cash balances and maintain a
strong and healthy liquidity level to ensure that it is well-positioned to
take advantage of any opportunities for business growth.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Leveraging on the strong foothold of its Manufacturing and Sales and
Trading businesses with a sustainable and stable cash flow, the Group
will dedicate its efforts to other established businesses, such as Music
and entertainment, Securities trading, Property business and money
lending/financial leasing. Besides, the Group will also continue to seek
other high potential projects in the PRC and overseas in a cautious
manner. It will maintain this diversification strategy with a view to
providing steady returns as well as fruitful growth to its shareholders.
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Manufacturing and Sales and Trading businesses

Cost reduction and efficiency enhancement will be the major
initiatives of the Group in the coming year. The management would
achieve the efficiency enhancement through better utilization of
machines and improvement in the existing production processes
to increase the productivity of each machines and enjoy higher
stability of product quality. The management will also evaluate
the performance of the newly-acquired new sheet fed offset press
machine and plan to replace the existing old press machines gradually
in the foreseeable future in order to achieve this initiative. Besides,
the Group will carry on a cost tightening policy to closely monitor the
operating costs incurred by its factories in the PRC.

Customer diversification will be another major initiative of the Group.
The sales teams have attended several large-scale trade exhibitions
held overseas and in the PRC and secured business contracts with
several well-known multi-national corporations. Two of the target
customers have started to place orders with the Group and it is
expected that the future order size will increase. To achieve customer
diversification, the Group will allocate more resources to approach
and build up business relationships with other large multi-national
corporations and focus on customers with higher profit margin.

Furthermore, the Group will continue to look for skilled talents, who
can bring new ideas and thoughts to strengthen the Group’s teams,
to join the Company.

The Group will take a prudent approach in expanding and diversifying
its customer base and overcoming all difficulties brought by the
uncertain global economy and cost pressure from the PRC in the
coming year.

Music and entertainment business

The Group plans to further develop the services provided by its
artistes so as to broaden its income base. To promote and expand the
Group's artistes services to more customers, the Group will recruit
new staffs to strengthen the artiste management support team in
Hong Kong and will engage a third party agent in the PRC to explore
opportunities in providing the services of its artistes in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

RERHFHEUREZEK
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The Group will continue to invite more labels and partners to release
their physical and digital products through the Group’s established
platform and will seek other cooperation opportunities with other
entertainment companies. The Group targets to distribute music and
songs of five to eight artistes who are not under any music label
in 2014. The Group will assess the profitability of producing and
organising concerts and shows that yield reasonable returns, and will
endeavour to enhance the exposure and popularity of its artistes and
promote the market recognition of the Group. In the coming financial
year, the Group targets to organise two concerts including a concert
by Julian Cheung Chi-Lam in July 2014.

The Group will pursue investment and cooperation opportunities with
entertainment partners in the PRC and overseas and plan to invest
in high quality teleplays, low-budget movies and plays to allow its
artistes to participate in and thus increase their exposure. The Group
will from time to time review the submitted teleplays and film scripts,
and will only invest in film production with suitable scripts and profit
potential.

The Group will broaden its revenue and profit base in a cautious
manner and is optimistic about the results.

Securities trading business and Property business

For the Securities trading business, the Group will carefully study
the market and information of the prospective investee before any
purchase of securities. The Group will maintain the current portfolio
size unless it becomes aware of any great market potential in
securities.

Property business is a new market segment for the Group and the
two projects under this segment are carried out in cooperation
with experienced domestic property developers in the PRC. This
enables the Group to deepen its knowledge and learn from the
market practitioners and apply such knowledge in future potential
transactions. The Group will continue to seek further investment
opportunities with favourable investment return in a cautious manner.
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Other business opportunities

Money lending and financial leasing are another two areas that
the Group targets to explore and further develop. The Group has
commenced both businesses during the Year with small-scale
transactions which enable the Group to familiarise itself with the
business as soon as possible with minimum business risk. The
management is actively seeking potential transactions with high
returns and acceptable level of risk. In addition, the Group is
evaluating the business model of these two businesses for maximising
the synergies between the core businesses within the Group. The
management believes that this new business model will further
broaden the income base of the Group and provide more financial
solutions to manufacturing customers.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's sales and purchases are principally denominated in
Renminbi, HK dollar and US dollar. Except for Renminbi, there was no
significant fluctuation in the exchange rate between HK dollar and
US dollar throughout the year. The management will closely monitor
the foreign exchange risk of Renminbi and identify any significant
adverse impact on the PRC operations. The Group will consider
using appropriate hedging solutions, if required. For the financial
year ended 31 March 2014, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purpose and did not have any outstanding
hedging instruments as at 31 March 2014.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 March 2014, capital expenditure of the Group
for property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$11.3 million (2013: HK$15.0 million). Such addition was mainly
attributable to the acquisition of machines used in production and the
construction in progress on the land situated in Qingyuan in the PRC.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$15.1 million (2013: HK$16.3 million) for the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments which had been contracted for but had not been provided
in the financial statements. The Group did not have any capital
commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment
which had been authorised but had not been contracted for in both
years.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
March 2014 (2013: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has pledged a leasehold building
with a carrying value of approximately HK$28.2 million to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (2013: HK$29.1
million).

The Group has also pledged property, plant and equipment with
a carrying value of approximately HK$8.6 million to secure other
borrowings granted to the Group (2013: Nil).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 2,320 full-time
employees (2013: approximately 2,700). Total staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2014 was
approximately HK$173.3 million (2013: HK$151.6 million). The
remuneration schemes are generally structured with reference to
market conditions and the qualifications of the employees. The
reward packages of the Group's staff are normally reviewed on an
annual basis based on the staff’s and the Group’s performance. Apart
from salary payments, other staff benefits include contributions to
retirement benefit scheme, participation in share option scheme,
and medical insurance for eligible employees. In-house and external
training programs are provided as and when required.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group completed two
major acquisition transactions, which included the (i) subscription
of 16.67% equity interest in REEFHIE, details of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 February
2013; and (ii) subscription of 60% equity interest in ;&&= . Both

companies are engaging in property development business in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group further invested
HK$1,008,000 in a private entity incorporated in the Republic
of Korea by subscribing its shares during rights issue and upon
completion, the Group’s shareholding in this private entity will be
increased by 1.5%. Subsequent to the end of the Year, the Group
has signed a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose all of its shares in this company at a consideration of
HK$7,500,000.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 May 2014, Brilliant Wise International Limited (”Brilliant Wise"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose of
the Group’s equity interest in unlisted equity securities incorporated
in the Republic of Korea at cash consideration of HK$7,500,000. The
disposal has not yet been completed as at the date of this report.

On 18 June 2014, RYITMH EHBRREZEBR AT ("R EH
B%"), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated civil
proceedings against FEFEHIE in XY E LB ARZER (“People’s
Court of Baoan District”) for the repayment of the shareholder’s
loan contributed by F2EIE in the amount of RMB23,479,330.
On 19 June 2014, pursuant to an application made by # 2 B8
to freeze and preserve assets of HEFHIE in the total value of
RMB23,400,000, an order was granted by the People's Court of
Baoan District to freeze and preserve the two parcels of land owned
by & EH#E during the period from 24 June 2014 to 23 June 2016
("Freeze Order”). The Freeze Order is for the purpose of securing the
Group's rights to ensure that F/5F H#IE has sufficient assets of value
to repay the shareholder’s loan to the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRBE

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report (“Report”) in the Group's annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company acknowledges the important role of its Board in
providing effective leadership and direction to the Company's
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Company's operations. The Board recognises that good corporate
governance practices are vital to maintain and promote shareholder
value and investor confidence and has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing
Rules”). The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices and to reviewing its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that they align with the latest
development of the Group.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for certain
deviations from the code provisions which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs in this Report.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors
take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company and in the
attainment of the objective of creating value to its shareholders. Every
director carries out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the
standards of applicable laws and regulations, and acts in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight members, which include
two executive directors, three non-executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors, and has in its composition a
balance of expertise, skills and experience necessary for independent
decision-making.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Board comprises the following directors as at the date of this
report:

Executive directors:
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman)
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat (member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai

Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee before his resignation on
26 November 2013)

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (appointed on 5 April 2013)
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee)

Alternate Director:
Mr. LAU Kam Cheong (alternate director to Dr. NG Wai Kwan)

The list of directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Chief Executive Officer, is the uncle of Mr. SUEK
Ka Lun, Ernie, Chairman. The detailed relationships among members
of the Board are disclosed under “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Executives” on pages 34 to 37.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board has at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. During the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Company also has at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the Board.
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TEEBRBE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and experiences to the Board. Through
participation in Board meetings and serving on Board committees, all
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
separate persons in order to preserve independence and a balanced
judgement of views. The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun,
Ernie, is responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practices and is also
responsible for chairing the meetings and managing the operations
of the Board and ensuring that all major and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, is responsible for running the
Company's businesses and developing and implementing the Group's
strategic plans and business goals. The Company did not comply with
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March
2014 because the Board considers that the respective responsibilities
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are clear and
distinctive and hence written terms thereof are not necessary.

To further enhance the corporate governance practice and to rectify
the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer have been clearly established in writing and adopted by the
Board with effect from 1 April 2014.

Though the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are uncle and
nephew, they consider issues and make decisions independently.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MR GR 2 7
Annual Report 2014 F

EEg (&)
E=g4AMK (&)

AATRERBESBILIIFRTESTRIE L
MRz RESFREBIMEMEL 2
EEERERA - ARARAREREILIF
WITESRHAR L TRAIMEIELIES
MIE 2 BLNE -

HRTESZREFTEEIABRIEBRR
TRERLKER - BE2REETESH
RETESFLZEEKE  ZRIFNTE
EUEMBREARRRTHERMRE -

EERITHRAR

RIBLFE AT ZTRMERXEA2
R TEETHRER . ABRERD -
WA EHR— AR FRE - T FERBITHA
BoHBEZ TRBFERELAER
HIE o

ERRITRAAR BB BB ARAL
A UERFEIE AL HES A
FHER-BEFEETRA/BRBTE
BEEFERBERHIZEEXEARTRA
MEE TAEEIREFTSEEUNE
BEEFe EF HREFSRMME
ERMEESFEETERSLARRIES
WO TTHARBREESLE REEA
RBVEBZEERFIFT RAITAREE 2
REAFENEZEXKRR - ENESS
RBEIENMTBRAHRSE B ZBEBMHHA
i BRAEARERE $EE-T
—HE=RA=t—HILFE XRQFL
EETREEATRIZTRIEXEA2.
|

o

Rz

—

RE—SRAPEEARTHA NS LR
PEERTRZFRNEXEA2.1MEZIE
N ERRITBRHE2BEEHDEUE
EEWBY THEESHRMN A _F
—POFMA —BAER-

BEEFETRAESSBERBEK B
FHBYEBEBILAELIRE -



Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Annual meetings between Chairman and non-executive
directors without the executive directors present

Code Provision A.2.7 of the CG code stipulates that the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with the non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors), without
the executive directors present. The Chairman during the year ended
31 March 2014, namely Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, was himself an
executive director and as such, compliance with this code provision
was infeasible.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company, and each of the non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Mr. LEE Kwok Wan was appointed
for a term of 3 years from 5 April 2013 to 4 April 2016. Save as
Mr. LEE, all other non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors have a term of appointment which commenced
from 1 April 2013 and will continue for a period of three years until
31 March 2016. The term of appointment of each director is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board as
a whole is responsible for reviewing the structure and composition
of the Board by reference to the business model of the Company,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination
and appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and
succession planning of directors and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors.

The Company has not adopted written terms of the directors’
nomination procedures. Where vacancies on the Board exist, the
Board will carry out the selection process.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

The directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training
programmes at the Company’s expense to update themselves with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development will be arranged for the
directors whenever necessary.

Professional training for directors

During the year ended 31 March 2014, all existing directors confirmed
that they had complied with the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code by reading all materials provided by the Company Secretary
and/or attending regular trainings on the topics relating to corporate
governance and latest change and development of regulatory regime
launched by professional parties. The Company had received the
training records from each of the directors.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRBE

THE BOARD (Continued)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Yuk Shan joined the Group as the company secretary
of the Company since 23 August 2010. In her capacity acting as the
company secretary of the Company, Ms. Cheung reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. Ms. Cheung has undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest development and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The company secretary of the Company is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Bye-laws contains provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
respective associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board met 4 times, two
of which were regular Board meetings for reviewing and approving
the financial and operating performance of the Group. The Company
did not announce its quarterly results and hence did not consider the
holding of quarterly meetings as necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

THE BOARD (Continued)

Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General

Meetings (Continued)

Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)

The individual attendance record of each director at the meetings of
the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, and at the
General Meetings during the year ended 31 March 2014 is set out

below:
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RARE 28

Attendance/Number of meetings
held during the tenure of directorship

ESHRzHERY gFKE
Audit Remuneration General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
EERE gz ENZEY ¥Hzag BEAE
Executive Directors BiTES
~ Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Emie -EBEBEE 44 N/A N/A 4/5
(Chairman) () TEA TEA
~ Mr. SUEK Chai Hong ~BEELE 44 /A N/A 5/5
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TE##) A TEA
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
~Dr. NG Wai Kwan -REHET 3/4 N/A N/A 5/5
TEA TEA
~ Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren —RIMM LA 4/4 N/A N/A 5/5
A T
~ Mr. WONG Sun Fat —ENRELE (BEEEER 444 22 17 5/5
(member of Audit Committee and HHWZEEM8)
Remuneration Committee)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUEHTES
— Mr. TSE Tin Tai —HRREE 4/4 N/A N/A 1/5
i A A
~ Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (Chairman of —-EEEEE 212 212 0/0 23
Remuneration Committee and (R-F—=F+—4
member of Audit Committee before his ZtANAFEEA
resignation on 26 November 2013) HWER BT ER
FEZEEHKE)
~ Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman of -BENLt 444 22 17N 4/5
Audit committee and member of (BRZERTRER
Remuneration Committee) HHWZE52/8)
— Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (appointed on -ZEERE 44 212 11 44

5 April 2013) (Chairman of
Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee)

(R=Z-=FEAAA
BZE) (HHZEE
ITERECZREMR)
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TEEBRBE

THE BOARD (Continued)
Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all the directors of the
Company and they have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code during the financial year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (“Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
on an annual basis.

DELEGATION

Code Provision D.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that an issuer should
formalise the functions reserved to the board and those delegated to
management.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has not
formalized and adopted written terms on the division of functions
reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. In
practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision making in all major
matters of the Company including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
internal controls and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve conflict of interests), appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior executives. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by these senior executives and the Board has the full support of
them to discharge their responsibilities.

To further enhance the corporate governance practice and to rectify
the deviation from Provision D.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company has
formalized and adopted the written terms on the division of functions
reserved to the Board and delegated to the management with effect
from 1 April 2014.
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CEEARE

DELEGATION (Continued)

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, and Investment
Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee as at 31 March 2014 comprises three
members, namely Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (Chairman), Ms. LUI Lai Ping,
Cecily and Mr. WONG Sun Fat, the majority of them are independent
non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Remuneration of each director is determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee
shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer in
relation to its proposals relating to the remuneration of the executive
directors and have access to professional advice at the Company's
expense, if necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Remuneration Committee
has held one meeting to review the remuneration of the directors and
senior management and made recommendation to the Board.

The written term of reference for the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk)
and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to
shareholders upon request.
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TREAHRSE

DELEGATION (Continued)
Investment Management Committee

For the purpose of effective and timely management of investment
matters of the Company, and in order to cope with the Company’s
business development in the future, a committee of the Board
known as Investment Management Committee was established in
March 2014 for identifying, assessing and analyzing all investment
opportunities for the Group and to make recommendations on
acquisition or disposal to the directors from time to time.

The Investment Management Committee as at 31 March 2014
comprised four members, namely, Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie (Chairman),
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi, Warren, and Ms.
CHEUNG Yuk Shan, who possesses experience and familiarity with
financial and investment analysis.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Investment Management
Committee has held one meeting and all members of the Investment
Management Committee attended the meeting,

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has not established a nomination committee at present,
which was in deviation of Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG
Code. The Board considers the determination of the appointment and
removal of directors to be the Board’s collective decision. The Board
will identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members
when necessary. The Board considers potential directorship based on
the candidate’s qualification, expertise, experience and knowledge as
well as the requirements under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the policies
and practices of the Company on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the
year ended 31 March 2014, the Board reviewed the Company’s status
of compliance with the CG Code.
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CEEARE

BOARD DIVERSITY

Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG code stipulates that the board shall
have a policy concerning the diversity of board members, and should
disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in the corporate
governance report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy on 1 September
2013 (“Board Diversity Policy”). In assessing the Board composition,
the Board would consider various aspects set out in the Board
Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, knowledge, professional experience
and skills. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and the
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2014.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The management provides such explanation and information to the
Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial information put to the Board for approval and the
financial position of the Company.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Company’s
assets. The internal control system of the Group aims to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group. The senior management reviews and evaluates the control
process and monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to
the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to address the
variances and identified risks.
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CEEARE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Internal Controls (Continued)

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.
Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group. The Board has also considered
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee as at 31 March 2014 comprised three non-
executive directors, Ms. LUl Lai Ping, Cecily (Chairman), Mr. WONG
Sun Fat and Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, the majority of them are independent
non-executive directors (including at least one independent non-
executive director who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The written term of reference for the Audit Committee is posted on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and is available to shareholders
upon request.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function
and external auditors before submission to the Board.

o To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors.
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Corporate Governance Report

CEEARE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee met
twice and reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2013 and interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2013. The Audit Committee has also
reviewed with the management the Group's accounting policies and
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters
of the Group and reported to the Board on material issues, if any,
and made recommendations to the Board. It has also reviewed the
work performed and fees charged by the external auditors and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2014
has also been reviewed by the Audit Committee. There is no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of external
auditors.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 52 to 53.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the remuneration paid to
the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$1,500,000 and HK$300,000
respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEBRBE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Group also recognises the importance of transparency and timely
disclosure of corporate information which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the Company’s developments. Investors may write directly
to the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings
to ensure a high level of accountability to the shareholders and for
the shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and goals.
External auditors, the Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, normally
attend the annual general meeting and other relevant general
meetings to answer questions from the shareholders.

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholders of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, as amended from time to time. The
written requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be
signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business.
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Corporate Governance Report
TREARSE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (Continued)

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general meeting
shall follow the above procedures for the deposit of requisition for a
general meeting.

Shareholders who wish to put forward any enquiry to the Board
may send such written enquiry to the Company'’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong, to the attention of the company secretary of
the Company.

The Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries
Limited, deals with shareholders’ questions on their shareholdings and
related share registration matters.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company (www.newaygroup.com.hk) and of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) after the shareholders’ meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2014, there was no significant
change in the Company's constitutional documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAEZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, aged 35, was appointed as chairman of
the Company since August 2009. He has been an executive director
of the Company since July 2004 and chief executive officer since
November 2007 until 31 August 2009. Mr. SUEK obtained an EMBA
degree and a master degree in marketing from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2008 and 2003 respectively. He has 2 years of
experience in investment banking and subsequently moved on to
commercial sector and has been a director of a private company
for two years. Mr. SUEK possesses sophisticated and professional
management experience and familiar with investment analysis. He
is responsible for monitoring the Group’s business development and
to search for business opportunities in the PRC market and overseas.
Mr. SUEK is a director of Nitgen&Company Co. Ltd, a Korean
company listed on KOSDAQ. Mr. SUEK received a remuneration of
HK$2,160,000 per annum.

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie is the son of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior
executive and controlling shareholder of the Company, the nephew
of Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company, and Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the
Company.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong, aged 52, was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company since August 2009, he has been
the Company’s executive director since 1992. Mr. SUEK obtained
a bachelor degree of Business Administration in Finance from York
University, Canada, he has more than 20 years of experience in
marketing and is responsible for running the Company’s businesses
and developing and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and
business goals. Mr. SUEK received a remuneration of HK$1,260,000
per annum.

Mr. SUEK Chai Hong is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, the
executive director and chairman of the Company, the brother-in-law
of Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela, senior executive of the Company; both
of whom are also controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAEZEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. NG Wai Kwan, aged 64, was appointed as the Company’s
non-executive director in March 2007. Dr. NG holds an engineering
doctorate degree from the University of Warwick in United Kingdom.
Dr. NG has over 30 years' experience in procurement, logistic planning
and leadership development.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Dr.
NG and the Group, Dr. NG is appointed for a specific term of 3
years commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Dr.
NG's remuneration was increased from HK$70,000 per annum to
HK$85,000 per annum since 1 April 2014.

Dr. NG is the uncle of Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, executive director and
chairman of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi Warren, aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002 and re-designated as a
non-executive director of the Company in November 2007. Mr. CHAN
is the fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
(UK) and the associate member of the Institute of the Chartered
Accounts in England and Wales and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries & Administrators (UK).

Mr. CHAN has over 30 years of experience in financial management,
corporate administration and corporate finance in several
multinational corporations and public-listed companies.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr. CHAN
and the Group, Mr. CHAN is appointed for a specific term of 3 years
commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Mr. CHAN's
remuneration was increased from HK$120,000 to HK$135,000 per
annum since 1 April 2014.

Mr. WONG Sun Fat, aged 58, is a non-executive director of the
Company, he was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company since December 1994 until August 2009. Mr.
WONG was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company
in August 2009. He is now a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Wong holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong and has
over 30 years’ of experience in electronics products business and has
vast experience in manufacturing operations.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
WONG and the Group, Mr. WONG is appointed for a specific term
of 3 years commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Mr.
WONG's remuneration was increased from HK$70,000 per annum to
HK$85,000 per annum since 1 April 2014.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAEZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Tin Tai, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2006. He holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from York University, Canada and has
over 20 years' experience in sales and marketing field in information
technology related companies.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr.
TSE and the Group, Mr. TSE is appointed for a specific term of 3
years commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Mr,
TSE's remuneration was increased from HK$70,000 per annum to
HK$85,000 per annum since 1 April 2014.

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily, aged 49, holds a master degree of science
in accountancy and a master degree in business administration.
She is also an affiliate member of the Association of International
Accountant. Ms. LUl has more than 15 years’ experience in financial
management, financial accounting, human resources management
and company secretarial field. She is at present manager of a sizeable
company in Hong Kong, overseeing the company’s financial and
human resources management and company secretarial affairs.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Ms.
LUl and the Group, Ms. LUl is appointed for a specific term of 3
years commenced from 1 April 2013 until 31 March 2016. Ms.
LUI's remuneration was increased from HK$70,000 per annum to
HK$85,000 per annum since 1 April 2014.

Mr. LEE Kwok Wan, aged 46, holds a MBA degree in Business
Administration and a bachelor’s degree in the Commerce and
Accountancy and is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. LEE has more than 15 years of
accounting and management experience. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of a sizable company in Hong Kong engaging in manufacture
of watches. He was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company from March 2007 to May 2008.

Pursuant to a letter of appointment entered into between Mr. LEE
and the Group, Mr. LEE is appointed for a specific term from 5 April
2013 until 4 April 2016. Mr. LEE's remuneration was increased from
HK$70,000 per annum to HK$85,000 per annum since 1 April 2014.

Mr. LEE is currently an independent non-executive director of QPL
International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 243), a company whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. LEE is
also as a company secretary of Major Holdings Limited (Stock code:
8209), a company whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Executives

EERSRITRAEZEE

ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong, aged 51, was appointed as alternate director
to Dr. NG Wai Kwan, non-executive director of the Company, in July
2008. He is a manager of Delight Source Limited. Mr. LAU joined the
Group in 2001. He holds a master degree in Business Administration
and a master degree in Professional Accounting from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Chartered Institute of
Marketing in United Kingdom and has over 20 years of experience in
management, sales and marketing.

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Dr. NG Wai Yung, Angela has over 30 years’ experience in label
and screen process printing business. She holds a master degree in
Business Administration from Macquarie University, Australia and a
Honorary doctor of philosophy degree in Business Management from
Burkes University, the British West Indies, United Kingdom. Dr. NG is
the President of Chung Tai Printing Company Limited and Chung Tai
Printing (China) Company Limited and also a senior executive of the
Company. She is responsible for the daily management of the printing
business.

Ms. NG Wai Chi has over 30 years of experience in label and
silkscreen printing. She is the Vice President of Chung Tai Printing
Company Limited and Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
and she is responsible for the corporate social responsibility and
quality management of the Group.

Mr. WAN Kwok Leung, Nicholas is a director of various companies
under music and entertainment division of the Group, he was the
human resources manager of Neway Karaoke Box for the period
from 2001 to 2007 before being appointed as an executive director
thereof. Mr. WAN has over 10 years of experience in the related fields
of management and holds a bachelor’s degree in human resources
management from Hong Kong Baptist University and a master of
science degree of Management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other details of the subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 54.

No interim dividend of was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment during the year
at an aggregate cost of approximately HK$11.3 million in order to
increase its production capacity. Details of this and other movements
in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company is set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2014, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders were approximately HK$533.7 million.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 164.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong

(Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive directors:

Dr. NG Wai Kwan (alternate director:

Mr. LAU Kam Cheong)
Mr. CHAN Kwing Choi,

Warren

Mr. WONG Sun Fat

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. TSE Tin Tai
Mr. CHENG Chi Wai (resigned on 26 November 2013)

Ms. LUI Lai Ping, Cecily
Mr. LEE Kwok Wan (appointed on 5 April 2013)

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Suek Chai Hong, Dr. Ng Wai Kwan and Ms. Lui Lai Pang, Cecily will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") of the
Company. Retiring directors being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM pursuant to Bye-law 87(2).
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2014, the interests of the directors and their associates
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

(i) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
of the Company

EECRBEY
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Percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital
ordinary  of the Company

Name of director Capacity shares held HARRATE BT
BEENE E20) BEERERKAR RAET DL
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie Other interests 371,320,000 36.43%
EmBiE Hib s
Mr. SUEK Chai Hong Beneficial owner 7,000,000 0.69%
BEEEXRSE EnEEA
Dr. NG Wai Kwan Beneficial owner 80,000 0.01%
REBELT EmEEA
Mr. WONG Sun Fat Beneficial owner 800,000 0.08%
EiR s EnEEA
Note: Mtat -
1. These shares are beneficially owned by CNA Company Limited 1. ZERMHIYBACNA Company

("CNA") which in turn is beneficially owned by the CNA Trust,
a discretionary trust whose beneficiaries include Mr. SUEK Ka

Lun Ernie.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(ii)

Long positions of shares in associated corporations

At 31 March 2014, CNA beneficially owned deferred non-
voting shares in the following subsidiaries of the Company:

Name of subsidiary

Name of owner

EEZROKEBERNER
(%)

(i) MHEZEROZHFR

R-ZZE—MNMF=A=+—H CNA
EnEBEARARB NYBAR 2
I ERIEER

Number and par value of
deferred non-voting shares

MEARERE BEAEW EREREER B REE
Chung Tai Management Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PAREBERAA 2 BREENET
Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited CNA 100 shares of HK$100 each
RRENR (B AR AR 100R% - AR E{E100/8 7T
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited CNA 3,000 shares of HK$100 each
R ENRI A IR 2 A 3,0008% * FAXEfE100/8 7T
Profit Link Investment Limited CNA 2 shares of HK$1 each
PRIEEEEBR AR 20 BRREETVE T
The Greatime Offset Printing Company, Limited CNA 9,500 shares of HK$100 each

HEAF X ENRI B R A

The rights and restrictions of such deferred non-voting shares
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2014.

9,5008% * FAXEE1008 T
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2014, the interests or short positions of the substantial
shareholders (other than the directors of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
were as follows:

FERR
R-ZZE—NFE=A=+—H TERE
(KRBIZEEZHRIN REAAAIRRBRES
NEEIGEPE36KRTFECTERRESA
MR Fracsr HIRBEES KB E KA E
XVELZE2 K35 BB /A B A AN 7 K Bk A2 B
2 AN E IR D K AR IR 1 4 a3 B
T

Long Positions Ha
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Number of  of the Company
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held HAEQT ST
KRR &R 14 FrERG#E RAET DL
CNA Beneficial owner 371,320,000 36.43%
EREAA
Fiducia Suisse SA Trustee 371,320,000% 36.43%
ZEEA
David Henry Christopher Hill Interest in a controlled corporation 371,320,0007 36.43%
REHDEE 2 #E
Rebecca Ann Hill Interest of spouse 371,320,000 36.43%
fic B 4 =
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher Founder of trust 398,720,0007 39.11%
EEE A L BEEERISZA
Dr. NG Wai Yung By attribution 398,720,000° 39.11%
REAEL FE1E 2
Notes: Bat -
1. CNA is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust. 1. CNAR — BT TSNS -
2. Out of these shares, 371,320,000 shares duplicate with those held by 2. MR - 371,320,0000% 45 B CNARE
CNA. B2 R—Hehdp
3. Spouse of Mr. David Henry Christopher Hill. 3. David Henry Christopher HillZ B2 (8 o
4, Out of these shares, 371,320,000 shares are beneficially owned by 4. REZE R 5§ 371,320,0000% FHCNAE

CNA which in turn is beneficially owned by a discretionary trust set up
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who is also one of the beneficiaries;
27,400,000 shares are beneficially owned by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher.

5. Spouse of Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, a substantial shareholder.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 17 August 1992, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Expired Scheme”), which was expired on 16 August 2012,
being 10 years after the adoption date of Expired Scheme.

On 13 February 2014, a new share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme") was approved by shareholders of the Company and
adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the day on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted which was
101,935,456 shares. The shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
share capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries) in issue from time
to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group to each participant
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Share options granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be approval by
the independent non-executive directors. Share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company or any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue and having an aggregate value
in excess of HK$5 million in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant must be approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.
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Directors’ Report
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of the Shares on the offer date of the share option, which must
be a business day; (i) the average closing price of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for trade in one or
more board lots of the Shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of the share option; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share. A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the grant of an option.

No dividend will be payable and no voting rights will be exercisable in
relation to an option that has not been exercised.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, no share option was granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
adopted by the Company.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive directors are independent.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Non-exempted connected transaction

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has entered into a
connected transaction in relation to the non-exercise of a put option
granted by Dr. Suek Chai Kit Christopher (“Dr. Suek”) to the Group.
Dr. Suek is the father of Mr. Suek Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive director
and the chairman of the Board, an elder brother of Mr. Suek Chai
Hong, an executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company and the brother-in-law of Dr. Ng Wai Kwan, a non-executive
director. Dr. Suek and his family members are the beneficiaries of a
discretionary trust which holds a controlling interest in the Company.
Dr. Suek is a connected person of the Company due to the above
reasons. The details of the above connected transaction were set out
in note 34 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
announcements of the Company on 17 July 2013, 7 August 2013, 22
August 2013, 26 September 2013, 30 September 2013, 6 December
2013, 31 December 2013 and 13 February 2014, and circulars of the
Company dated 2 September 2013 and 24 January 2014.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has entered into
certain continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out
below:

Exempt continuing connected transactions
1. Sharing of office

Neway Entertainment Limited and/or its subsidiaries (“Neway
Entertainment Group”) (being wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) entered into a renewed licence agreement with
Neway Karaoke Box Limited (“Neway Karaoke Box") pursuant
to which Neway Karaoke Box agreed to grant a license to
Neway Entertainment Group to occupy and use certain areas
at Unit 801-2, 8/F, East Ocean Centre, 98 Granville Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Office”) at a license fee
of HK$30,000 per month for a term commencing 1 November
2013 and end on 31 March 2015.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Exempt continuing connected transactions (Continued)

1.

Sharing of office (Continued)

Neway Entertainment Group is currently occupying the Office
as its head office. The license fee was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the parties having regard to the
prevailing market rates of similar commercial properties in the
same vicinity.

Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly wholly-owned by a
discretionary trust for the benefits of members of SUEK Family.

Provision of staff quarter

Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into
a tenancy agreement with Pimo Group Limited in renting a
residential premises at House 21, Windsor Park, Phase Il, 1 Ma
Lok Path, Shatin, New Territories as staff quarter at a monthly
rental of HK$83,333 commencing 1 November 2013 for a
two years term. Pimo Group Limited is a company, of which
Mr. SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie, an executive Director, is one of the
beneficial owners.

Sale of Goods

During the year, Chung Tai Printing (China) Company Limited
sold certain goods to a related company of which Dr. SUEK
Chai Kit, Christopher is one of the ultimate beneficial owners.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company. Since each of the respective
transactions is less than HK$1,000,000, they are exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions —
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content

Neway Entertainment Group provides the promotion services to,
and distributing licensed content in the form of karaoke music
videos to the karaoke outlets operated by, Neway Karaoke Box and
its subsidiaries (“Neway Karaoke Box Group”). Such transactions
constitute continuing connected transaction for the Company. A New
Master Agreement has been concluded with Neway Karaoke Box to
regulate the provision of the promotion services and the distribution
of licensed content.

Parties

(A) Neway Entertainment Limited (for itself and on behalf of other
members of Neway Entertainment Group); and

(B) Neway Karaoke Box (for itself and on behalf of other members
of Neway Karaoke Box Group). Neway Karaoke Box is indirectly
wholly-owned by a discretionary trust for the benefits of
members of SUEK Family, and therefore, a connected person
of the Company.

Term

Commencing on 1 April 2012 and end on 31 March 2015.
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Karaoke BoxX E[f /@ A & ([Neway
Karaoke Box& B | ) f2 AR 7% - 3 LA
RHROKE L& 2 T RELE 2 R
OKPIE NI AI B LEAND - ZERXHIE
AR B 2 P B RAERL 5) - — I B Neway
Karaoke Boxs] 3 2 ¥ @1 R BRI E
BERE LD IHFFAIETLANR -

HEY

(A)  Neway Entertainment Limited
(BREXEH KK EXNeway
Entertainment®SE B 2 E MK B A
al) i &

(B)  Neway Karaoke Box ( BEARH K
K & Neway Karaoke Box% & 2
Hihpk 82 7]) > Neway Karaoke
BoxJJ I AR K&K B Az M
Bz —BEREEERELER
A At HIFARARAR ZBEAN
+o

HR

- —FNA—BRE-_ZT—HF
—A=+—Hlk-

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
Annual Report 2014 fF #§



Directors’ Report

ESERE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions —
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

Promotion services

During the term of the New Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group to
provide promotion services (which may include interviews by media,
TV commercials, photo shooting, performance at public functions) to
be performed by the artistes managed from time to time by Neway
Entertainment Group on terms to be mutually agreed on a case by
case basis, such terms not being more favourable as those provided by
Neway Entertainment Group to independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a service fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on commercial negotiation making reference to the type of promotion
services to be provided, the working hours, skills and popularity
required of the artistes. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make
payment of the service fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit
note issued by Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

Distribution of licensed content

During the term of the New Master Agreement, Neway Karaoke Box
Group may from time to time request Neway Entertainment Group
to distribute licensed content in the form of karaoke music videos to
the karaoke outlets operated by Neway Karaoke Box Group on terms
to be mutually agreed on a case by case basis, such terms not being
more favourable as those provided by Neway Entertainment Group to
independent third parties.

In return, Neway Entertainment Group charges Neway Karaoke Box
Group a license fee which is determined on a case by case basis based
on the number of karaoke music videos and the popularity required
of the artistes. Neway Karaoke Box Group shall make payment of the
licence fee within 30 days after the receipt of the debit note issued by
Neway Entertainment Group from time to time.

During the year, the service fee for provision of promotion services
and the licensed fee for distribution of licensed content charged
by Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group are
HK$4,003,600 and HK$1,040,000 respectively totally HK$5,043,600.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

The annual caps of the service fee payable by Neway Karaoke Box
Group for the provision of the promotion services and the licensed fee
for distribution of licensed content are set out as follows:

For the period ending 31 March 2013 HK$13,000,000

For the year ending 31 March 2014 HK$14,000,000

For the year ending 31 March 2015 HK$14,000,000

The cap amounts are determined by reference to, among other things,
historical figures of the services fees and licensed fee charged by
Neway Entertainment Group to Neway Karaoke Box Group and the
projected development and promotion plan of Neway Entertainment
Group and Neway Karaoke Box Group.

The continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors. The independent non-executive
directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company; (i) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing it on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company as
a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
engaged the external auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed-upon procedures in respect of these continuing connected
transactions of the Group. The auditor has reported to the Board that:

(i) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

(ii) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to external auditors’ attention
that causes them to believe that the transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company.

HEBERS (&)

TERAREERERSZ -RHER
BERTHFTEFLAR (F)

Neway Karaoke Box5E[BI 5t EL /& 12 (L /&
RIBEMN ZREERDHEHAAZTLAD
R 2B 2 FE EREHNMT :

Hz-Z2-—=F 13,000,00078 7
Z“A=t—HHA
BE-_T—NE 14,000,000/ 7T
“A=t+-BHIEFE
BE-_ZT—1fF 14,000,000 7t
ZAZ+—HLEFE

ZELREWIH2E (AP E1E) Neway
Entertainment®s B [A)Neway Karaoke
Box&= B W EN RS B 7T Al & 2 iR T B8R
LA K2 Neway Entertainment£: & & Neway
Karaoke Box5s B 2 AT 8 & R i E &1 £
& E °

BUFRTERCEHFERERS -
BUFATEZCHR HERERS
TORARRRAE R —REBBIERET
S (iR — AR FERFRRT AL 0 R (iR IR
RERRMR S 2 HEHRET MA R
BEZIGRBRAFEE ITFAART
PR BEENE -

BiE FHRAIE14A381F KRB D&
FEARARINEAZEEI R ZEAERFE
BEXIFNTHETHERF ZERE
MESERE:

(i) SMNEPEREAEDY NHMEBERMEES
SREMEETERAREBER
IAREEESHE-

(i) BMERAREERESERIREZ
R5ME - SRR EE L A
MEEESHRIHEEERISHE
EERTHAARABETARBZE
BHR-
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions -
Provision of the promotion services and distribution of
licensed content (Continued)

(iii) nothing has come to the external auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions.

(iv)  with respect to the aggregate amount of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
external auditors’ attention that causes them to believe that
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the previous announcement dated 19 March 2012 made
by the Company in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions.

The directors confirm that the related party transactions as disclosed
in notes 27, 34 and 39 in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the general staff of the Group is set
up by the management of the Group on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the
Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company applied
the principles of and complied with all the code provisions of CG
Code, save for certain deviations. Details of the corporate governance
practices are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 20 to 33.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest supplier accounted for 9.6% of total purchases
while the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 24.2% of total
purchases during the year.

The Group's largest customer accounted for 8.2% of total turnover
while the Group's five largest customers were accounted for 32.0%
of total turnover.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have a
beneficial interest in any of the Group'’s five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWAY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Neway
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MR GR 2 7
Annual Report 2014 F

BHPESEZRERAT
(REREZAMHI L BRLA])
IR 3R

EECDERIEANES4EEE163E
Neway Group Holdings Limited® £ £ [&
TRAERAE* ([ERA]) REWBA
Al (s [ EEE]) 2EaiBmE =
BRER-_Z-—NFEF=ZA=1+t—B2Z&H4E
BBRRSRE  BEEZBEFE L
EREHLAEMPHKRARK GeEm
BHERRGEHRENERET UKTE
SRR E KA AR

ESNGEUMBRRARECEL

BERREFAREREFLGHAE
Bz BRM B MEER REFB QB K
{5 2 3% 5R AR T A BLAE E B 1 A F 1 = AR
RRAZEBHBERE REEESERR
MAEEAMBHMRAVE 2 NEREEE
AR RN RGFERMER 2
BERBERRA 2B M BEHRE -

BB 2 E1E

BEEZAEEARBESFZER YT
REMBBRREFLER YREBEAFRE
REDEFOFERMBRBEBIRME Kk
ASMRETEE M % - T E TR AR
TELZARMEMEMA LA S SAIEE
MEE - BFREFEETERSRM
ZEBGEEAETERTIF - RFE
A|ERKEBEFETERRBILRE MATT
Bz NAEBRESAMBHREES T
FE I EAERRA -

* EHREF



Independent Auditor’s Report
B XA RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
27 June 2014

B RRITREFINEREBGE TS
WERAMBSEREEER CBEZRE -

FTi&F 2 B EURRAZEED 2 H - &

FERHE AR EREF SR T B AR A B 7S
Mk HIREARSERR A 2 BB o £ 511
ZERBE ZEMEEEEHE QAR
HEEEMA $m&%#ﬂz@A%%
WRMBE AT URFTEE 2T
IR BWIERAH AR AP EEIER
EERER - BRNBRIBESAE
RzestBRzaBEMRmER 2 g5t
FEZEBRM  UAFESEETBEHRE
ZEBEEFRT A

SRIEREN iﬁﬁﬁ Z%Vﬁﬁﬁi
BEMRESZ ZEZE RITHAR

% D
@M

et
dm

~

EERE EREBUERELED 416
PEHREANEET AT R &%
BR-_ZT—NE=A=+—H 2Bk
Mk BEEEHEZBLEFEZEER
RERE WEILZBEBQREN 2 8
BRTHEERE-

BB
BE o BERARIEHT

BB
—ET-OEXNAZTER

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7
Annual Report 2014 F #§



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBERkHEMEEBRARR

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

2014 2013
—ZE-0mF —T—=F
NOTES HKS$ HK$
k23 BT BT
Revenue g &= 6 613,269,305 643,749,236
Cost of sales 5 KA (494,486,496) (531,067,345)
Gross profit EF 118,782,809 112,681,891
Interest income R B U A 4,859,568 3,944,560
Other income H A 1,401,466 1,068,702
Selling and distribution expenses SHE M ASSHR X (35,193,132) (33,483,762)
Administrative expenses THHZ (103,444,098) (91,413,404)
Other gains and losses H e & g5 18 7 (6,099,579) 10,786,408
Finance costs & B AN 8 (814,015) (121,603)
Share of loss of a joint venture JElh—REERAIZ
B8 (23,595) -
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (E51R) & Al (20,530,576) 3,462,792
Taxation charge TIAS H 11 (1,219,132) (1,810,277)
(Loss) profit for the year RE (FH8) & F 12 (21,749,708) 1,652,515
Other comprehensive (expense) Hir2m (BX) WA
income:
Item that may be subsequently reclassified £ {& A] B %7 7 48 = }8 25
to profit or loss: ZHEA -
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBTEE
translation of foreign operations I N =R (656,396) 6,264,262
Total comprehensive (expense) income AEE2HE (LX)
for the year WA B (22,406,104) 7,916,777
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to: LA~ A JE(h A4
(BE)RAHM:
Owners of the Company PAN/NSIE SN (21,015,858) 1,671,302
Non-controlling interests PR = (733,850) (18,787)
(21,749,708) 1,652,515
Total comprehensive (expense) income LATATEEARER2E
for the year attributable to: (R ABEE:
Owners of the Company PAN/NSIE SN (21,476,056) 7,935,564
Non-controlling interests eI AR R = (930,048) (18,787)
(22,406,104) 7,916,777
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (E1E) &F
Basic BN 74 (2.06) HK cents &1l 0.16 HK cents 71ll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R R TR
At 31 March 2014
R-_ZFE—WF=H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-F —ET—=F
NOTES HK$ HK$
k=3 BT BT
Non-current assets FmENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERHE 15 226,343,098 244,948,044
Prepaid lease payments AR E IR 16 31,938,061 32,686,622
Deposits for land use rights j:ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuTéé 17 18,289,547 18,291,488
Intangible assets mAE 18 5,317,632 5,892,148
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 19 23,738,802 13,010,000
Loan to an available-for-sale investee BT —BAHHE
WIRER Z2ER 19 30,995,269 -
Derivative financial instrument MESRIA 19 6,268,198 -
Loan to a joint venture LY xRadglralz
X 20 3,976,413 -
Deposits for investments KER® 21 = 24,227,191
Advances to potential investees AT ETWEIEER 2
B 22 24,975,025 75,008,963
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, &1 Uk BE ¥ 2 -
plant and equipment BEMEEE 10,598,669 -
382,440,714 414,064,456
Current assets MENEE
Inventories and record masters GFERER G 23 80,100,544 78,851,800
Properties under development for sale HEERBPYE 24 46,370,460 -
Held-for-trading investments FHEEEKRE 25 25,668,800 899,400
Trade and other receivables, B 5 Rk Hth fEUL
prepayments and deposits K18 B FOE
A RG] 26 125,503,906 132,728,829
Prepaid lease payments AR E IR 16 716,916 717,624
Amount due from a related company JEW — K BE QR
IE 27 4,034,056 6,466,061
Tax recoverable AU BB IR 619,161 870,654
Short-term bank deposits RHERITER 28 104,753,853 103,731,950
Cash and cash equivalents BehReEE 28 127,719,903 143,667,512
515,487,599 467,933,830
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and other payables and accruals B 5 & H ith fE S 5UR
VA K & 5T 5R08 29 75,507,600 74,034,051
Tax liabilities MIBEE 4,720,265 3,496,441
Amount due to a non-controlling R —RME AR
shareholder of a subsidiary —HBIEER
IR R IR 30 18,731,269 -
Borrowings E 37 18,716,112 1,607,187
117,675,246 79,137,679
Net current assets MBEEFE 397,812,353 388,796,151
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R T
At 31 March 2014
R —E—NFE=H=4+—H

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=
NOTES HK$ HK$
g3 BT BT
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLBARGE 780,253,067 802,860,607
Non-current liability EmBEE
Deferred taxation RAE TR IR 32 7,484,799 8,699,920
Net assets BEFE 772,768,268 794,160,687
Capital and reserves BEARKR#HE
Share capital f% < 33 50,967,728 50,967,728
Reserves & 721,912,852 743,388,908
Total attributable to owners of RAEHER AEAL BT
the Company 772,880,580 794,356,636
Non-controlling interests JEIE A = (112,312) (195,949)
Total equity G ey e 772,768,268 794,160,687
The financial statements on pages 54 to 163 were approved and BN FESAEEFRI3AZHBHRERE B
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2014 and EEgR T —WUERAZTEBAE
are signed on its behalf by: REENZE THIATEERKREE:
SUEK Ka Lun, Ernie B &= 8 SUEK Chai Hong B & E
Chairman & Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBEK

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARAEEARR
Deemed

contribution Capital Non-

Share Share  Put option froma  redemption  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve  shareholder reserve reserve profits Total interests Total

AEAE Bf-4 XA
e R kR BE  RRzEM fi% EXRE REEH & FERER Eh
HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
AT AT AT AT #n En v B #n o
At 1 April 2012 R-E--£@A-A 50967,728 210949953  (14,202018) 33783474 62,400 48,487,880 456,391,655 786,421,072 (177,162) 786,243,910
Other comprehensive income REEH2EMA

for the year - - - - - 6,264,262 - 6,264,262 - 6,264,262
Profit loss) for the year RERT (B8) - - - - - - 1T 167130 (18787) 1652515
Total comprehensive income FE2ERA (BY) 8%

(expense) for the year - - - - - 6,264,262 1,671,302 7,935,564 (18,787) 7916,777
Transfer to retained profits upon ~ R=F-ZF+ A-BREHE

expiry of Put Option on 1July 2012 ERBERZREET - - 1422018 - - - (1422008) - - -
Recognition of shareholder RZE-ZE£f-A

contribution upon extension of DEHRIFERE

Put Option period on BRRRAR (H#54)

1 July 2012 (note 34) - - (58,102,788) 58,102,788 - - - - - -
Transfer to retained profits R-E-=fZA=1+-A

upon expiry of Put Option DEBEERS

on 31 March 2013 ERERBER - - 58,102,788 - - - (58,102,788) - - -
Recognition of shareholder RZE-ZEZA=1-A

contribution upon extension of DEHRHHLRE

Put Option period on BIREER (Hd54)

31 March 2013 note 34) - - (53533077) 53533077 - - - - - -
At31 March 2013 WZF-ZF=fA=1-A 50967,728 210949953 (53533077) 145419339 62,400 54,752,142 385738151 794,356,636 (195,949) 794,160,687
Other comprehensive expense REEMZERR

for the year - - - - - (460,198) - (460,198) (196,198) (656,396)
Loss for the year TEEE - - - - - - 1015858)  (21,015858) (733,850)  (21,749,708)
Total comprehensive expense KERERTAE

for the year - - - - - (460,198)  (21,015,858)  (21,476,056) (930,048 (22,406,104)
Transfer to retained profits upon ~~ RZF-ZEAAZTR

expiry of Put Option DEBEERS

on 30 September 2013 ERERTER - - 53533077 - - - (5353307) - - -
Recognition of shareholder \ZE-ZERAZTH

contribution upon extension of DEHEBRLRY

Put Option period on BERRER (Wi

30 September 2013 (note 34) - - (43537,618) 43537618 - - - - - -
Transfer to retained profitsupon M= F-MEF=A=+-H

expiry of Put Option on BEBRERE

31 March 2014 (note 34) BRERDEN (Wi3) - - B5IEB - - - 3531618 - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 35~ WE-FHBL (4235) - - - - - - - - 1,013,685 1,013,685
At 31 March 2014 R-B-ME=A=t-A 50,967,728 210,949,953 - 188,956,957 62,400 54291944 267,651,598 772,880,580 (112,312) 772,768,268
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTREBWMK

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—FT—WF=A=4+—HIFFE

2014 2013
—=—mE —E—=
NOTE HK$ HK$
Mzt BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES S E
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELRT (B8 ) & T (20,530,576) 3,462,792
Adjustments for: BEEH THIFEE:
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZERE 281,365 245,843
Reversal of allowance for bad debts O AR B - (4,900,635)
Write-down of inventories and WoRTF & RIE R &5
record masters 217,929 661,632
Depreciation of property, ME BERRETE
plant and equipment 27,820,744 28,318,234
Amortisation of intangible assets mpEERE 574,516 2,298,062
Release of prepaid lease payments SN 716,916 717,624
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, MEWE  BEREHZ
plant and equipment (We) E518 (2,510,682) 126,214
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE —KWB AT 2 W - (14,431,664)
Change in fair value of held-for-trading BFIEEBREZAFEED
investments 5,015,097 (59,550)
Impairment loss recognised on HAHHERERR L
available-for-sale investments BB E 6,518,019 10,240,000
Share of loss of a joint venture EBliE—REEAAEIE 23,595 -
Dividend income fist S A (424,836) (13,719)
Interest expense MER%Z 814,015 121,603
Interest income FEHBA (4,859,568) (3,944,560)
Operating cash flows before Rt 2 BEESEHAI 2
movements in working capital KERSRE 13,656,534 22,841,876
(Increase) decrease in inventories and FERER BT
record masters (3 hn) (1,474,905) 11,196,349
Decrease in trade and other receivables, B 5 R H M ERFIA
prepayments and deposits TERT FRIE RET @R 8,110,944 10,186,702
Increase in properties under development FEZEDYEEMN
for sale (3,516,675) -
Decrease (increase) in amount due RN — KRB E R R IE
from a related company A (38 n) 2,432,005 (3,856,503)
Increase in held-for-trading investments BEEEKEY jju (29,784,497) -
Decrease in trade and B 5 K H M FE R FRIB A K
other payables and accruals FE ST FRIE R (7,479) (3,665,917)
Cash (used in) generated from operations  #&%& (Fi#) FTEAZIR S (10,584,073) 36,702,507
Dividend income AZ B A 424,836 13,719
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEAEEFEH (330,567) (296,347)
Overseas tax paid BEINMIE (628,369) (1,956,422)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REXH (i) B
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BHEFHE (11,118,173) 34,463,457
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments Ugi& A] 4 H &5 & (1,008,019) (15,490,000)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, B EYE WE &
plant and equipment BYEEA (10,754,453) -
Advance to potential investees BT BERIRE T 23K = (74,885,654)
Placement of short term bank deposits GFEEHRITER (152,429,994) (183,112,872)
Withdrawal of short term bank deposits REVEHRITFR 150,851,086 242,359,769
Acquisition of a subsidiary (net of cash and Wi — KB A F (0
cash equivalents acquired) FriigiRe R & 5E) 35 186,746 -
Investment in a joint venture R—REERNEIZIRE (8) -
Loan to a joint venture BT —RELERNAIZERK (4,000,000) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  E§ A¥13 - = M 3% 1 (11,280,820) (15,705,038)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BER&E
plant and equipment FT18 R 4,538,680 50,050
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RK B AR ATERE — 29,754,000
Interest received RS 2,041,816 3,944,560
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTREBWMK

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

2014 2013
- ik —F-=
HK$ HK$
BT BT

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBFRERSFER (21,854,966) (13,085,185)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (44,349,745) (22,800,814)
New borrowings raised IGEE 61,458,670 21,777,980
Advance from a non-controlling E—KMBRF

shareholder of a subsidiary — AR R 2 B 1,223,776 -
Interest paid BEAAFLE (814,015) (121,603)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING METERE () RESFHE

ACTIVITIES 17,518,686 (1,144,437)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReERRLEE (BD)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS N FEE (15,454,453) 20,233,835
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EYELRESERE

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 143,667,512 122,604,029
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE ExEgmHE

CHANGES (493,156) 829,648
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2BEEREESEE

AT END OF THE YEAR 127,719,903 143,667,512
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReRBESEHELHZDW

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR S 127,719,903 143,667,512
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in Corporate Information to the annual
report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities and other details of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 43.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new

and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 cycle
HKFRSs

Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial
HKFRS 7 liabilities

Amendments to Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements

HKFRS 10, and disclosure of interests in other entities: Transition
HKFRS 11 and guidance
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKAS 19 (as revised  Employee benefits
in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised  Separate financial statements
in2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised  Investments in associates and joint ventures

in2011)

Amendments to Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase of a surface

mine

Except as described below, the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor has control over an investee
when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns. All three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control was
defined as the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Additional guidance has been included in HKFRS 10 to explain
when an investor has control over an investee.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to determining
which investees are controlled by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 April 2012.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures” and
the guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC)-INT
13 "Jointly controlled entities — non-monetary contributions
by venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a jointly arrangement
of which two or more parties have joint control should be
classified and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only
two types of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint
ventures. The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS
11 is determined based on the rights and obligations of parties
to the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the
legal form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed
by the parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other
facts and circumstances.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Previously, HKAS
31 contemplated three types of joint arrangements — jointly
controlled entities, jointly controlled operations and jointly
controlled assets. The classification of joint arrangements
under HKAS 31 was primarily determined based on the legal
form of the arrangement.

HKFRS 11 is applicable to a joint arrangement entered by
the Group in the current year. The directors of the Company
reviewed and assessed the Group’s interest in a joint
arrangement in accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 11,
and concluded that it is classified as interest in a joint venture.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
(please see notes 20 and 43 for disclosures).

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement
requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, subject to a few
exceptions. HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group
has not made any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13
for the 2013 comparative period (please see note 5 for the
2014 disclosures). Other than the additional disclosures, the
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed
as the “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present
items of other comprehensive income either before tax or net
of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than
the above mentioned presentation changes, the application
of the amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact
on profit or loss, other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to
HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

Amendments to
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 32
Amendments to
HKAS 36
Amendments to
HKAS 39
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures’®

Investment entities’

Accounting for acquisition of interests in joint
operations®

Financial instruments’

Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation®

Defined benefit plans: Employees contributions?

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities’

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets’

Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge

accounting’
Annual improvement to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle?

Annual improvement to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle?

Levies’
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

! Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014.

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

4 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014, with limited exceptions.

> Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge
accounting.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFFEF

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the
future may have a significant impact on the amounts reported
in respect of the Group's financial assets (e.g. the Group’s
unlisted shares that are currently classified as available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments, which are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting
period may have to be measured at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods, with changes in the fair value
being recognised in profit or loss). Regarding the Group’s
financial assets, given that the mandatory effective date is still
unknown, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect at this stage.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9
"Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from the
Company's first financial year commencing on or after 3
March 2014 in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance
on the consolidated financial statements in the period of
initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact
is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which concern the
preparation of consolidated financial statements, which for
this financial year and the comparative period continue to be
those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32),
in accordance with transitional and saving arrangements for
Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
"Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87
of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power over the investee to
affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of the subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All inter-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Interests in joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in joint venture (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the joint venture. When the Group's share of
losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in joint venture (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a joint venture. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of investment (include
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Acquisitions of assets through purchase of a
subsidiary

When the Group acquires a subsidiary that does not constitute
the acquisition of a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed, and the cost of the acquisition is allocated
to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction or event does not give rise to goodwill.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the

following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

J the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales of albums are recognised when the albums are delivered
and the title has passed.

Artistes management fee income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Promotion income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Concerts and shows income is recognised on the completion
of the relevant concerts and shows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from the licensing of the musical works is recognised
when the Group’s entitlement to such payments has been
established.

Deposits received from purchasers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Record masters

Record masters represent the accumulated costs incurred
in the production of master tapes of relevant audio-visual
products at the end of the reporting period and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the land
use rights and development cost of the property. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be
realised, less applicable selling expenses and the anticipated
costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group’s
accounting policy and directly attributable cost incurred during
the development period. On completion, the properties are
transferred to properties held for sale.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and included
in profit or loss under the finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables, investments held for trading and available-
for-sale investments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is
recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.

Investment held for trading

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Investment held for trading (Continued)

Investment held for trading is measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned in the financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
qguoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including loans to an available-for-sale investee
and a joint venture, advances to potential investees, trade
and other receivables and deposits, amount due from a
related company, short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When the trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
accruals, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instrument

Derivative is initially recognised at fair value and is
subsequently measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period, when such
derivative is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Put Option in relation to Neway Entertainment Limited

The settlement of put option which is made by receiving a
fixed amount of cash and delivering a fixed number of the
shares of Neway Entertainment Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, is accounted for as an equity instrument. The option
is measured at fair value on initial recognition and debited to
put option reserve.

Where the put option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in put option reserve will be transferred to
the retained profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon the expiration of put option.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2014, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
approximately HK$108,328,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$2,201,000) (2013: carrying amount
of approximately HK$110,698,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of approximately HK$2,201,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets with
indefinite useful life

Determining whether an impairment is needed requires an
estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant intangible assets
or the respective cash generating units ("“CGU") in which
intangible assets belong, which is the higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal. If there is any indication
that an asset may be impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group
shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to which
the asset belongs. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the assets or CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate represents a rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the actual
future cash flows or the revision of estimated future cash flows
are less than original estimated future cash flow, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2014, the carrying
amount of intangible assets is approximately HK$5,318,000
(2013: HK$5,892,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 18.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

B=E

4,

—E-AFE=A=F—HIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4., HFTFREERRZETE
(Continued) KR (&)
Depreciation e
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- ME BEMSERTAEBEE
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets, HErEISEBE (WE)E LER
after taking into account their estimated residual value, if any. ERBBEE Z(GF I FEBEE
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets SFEE - AEBGFRATEE
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation ZIEEt A RES UEFEXE
expenses to be recorded during the year. The useful lives EBEDLEZITER XS5 on(F
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar BAF T RTEET R E i -
assets taking into account anticipated technological changes. BENEHEBETRBUBREZR
The depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted if EtEEY (M7 BEEtHIREKX
there are significant changes from previous estimates. During ) AIFREEZITERYESE
the year, the Group determined that the useful lives of the HAR - FRN AEBEBETEWE.
property, plant and equipment should be remained constant B L&A {E AEEERA
to that of prior years. Depreciation expense is approximately EEFEEMHR REE-_ZE—NFE=
HK$27,821,000 (2013: HK$28,318,000) for the year ended 31 A=+—BLEFE ERZH
March 2014. /327,821,000 7T (T —=%:
28,318,000 7T ) °
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. @RIA
Categories of financial instruments E@MITEZER
2014 2013
—EB-NEF —=—=
HKS$ HK$
BT T
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables ER R EWRIE
(including cash and (BEE2R
cash equivalents) ReEE) 413,460,056 448,356,987
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 25,668,800 899,400
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 23,738,802 13,010,000
Derivative financial instrument TEeEHMIE 6,268,198 -
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amortised cost B AR 112,954,981 75,641,238
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loans to
an available-for-sale investee and a joint venture, derivative
financial instrument, available-for-sale investments, advances
to potential investees, held-for-trading investments, trade and
other receivables and deposits, amount due from a related
company, short-term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables and accruals, amount due to a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The directors of the Company
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
) Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, certain
trade receivables, bank balances, short-term bank
deposits, trade payables and borrowings of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), United
States dollars (“USD"), HK$, Japanese Yen ("JPY")
and Euro ("EURO"), the currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities,
as disclosed in notes 26, 28, 29 and 31 respectively.
Approximately 30% (2013: 30%) of the Group's sales
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity making the sale, whilst
almost 20% (2013: 20%) of costs are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entity’s functional currency. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, directors of the Company monitor
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. &®IE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERREEEERBEE
(Continued) (%)
Market risk (Continued) TSRk (&)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REEIINETECERKE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities EMEEaERRERERZ
at the end of the reporting period are approximately as EEmEmesElymT:
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =L
2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE —T-=F —E-mF “E-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
usD ey 33,587,000 55,839,000 3,440,000 2,046,000
HKS$ BT 14,228,000 3,327,000 - -
RMB AR 1,810,000 1,104,000 108,000 154,000
JPY H - - 358,000 184,000
EURO BT 601,000 735,000 - -
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD, B JTIE RS T
the Group does not expect any significant movements REBFEEET, BT 2E
in the USD/HK$ exchange rates. KARe HIB(ERERED -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

HE—ZF

—OFE=A=+—HIFFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% (2013: 10%) increase and decrease in functional
currency of respective group entity against relevant
foreign currencies (other than USD) and all other
variables were held constant. 10% (2013: 10%) is
the sensitivity rate used and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items, and adjusts their translation at the year end
for a 10% (2013: 10%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in post-tax loss (2013: increase in post-tax profit) for
the year where functional currency of respective group
entity strengthen 10% (2013: 10%) against foreign
currencies. For a 10% (2013: 10%) weakening of
functional currency of respective group entity against
foreign currencies, there would be an equal and

EWMIA (&)

BEABEERERBEE

(%)

mEEE (&)

(i) _E%@ﬁ{%)
REDH (5B)

T%ﬁﬂ$%§ﬁﬁ%%
BERCNEERLER

SNE(TBIEET)AEK
B2 E10% (& — =4
10% ) 2 BRE - B&—

@Tﬁl%T“ %%w
me?%m% —E—=
Fi10%)  IRE ﬁ%%

HZEXRASIEA EH
BRESITABERITE
INESHEEREIEE - Iﬂi
KIZEREIR10% (ZZ
—=F:10% ) EFHHHE
FUATIEE o N IE R BRFE
BRI SEEEE 2 ERK
HINEFHE10% (=T —=
F:10%) 2 BR T AFR
MeBBEBEMRL (ZF

opposite impact on the result for the year.

—=F BREE R E TS
m - wEREEEE 2
%E% ANEEBSE10% (=
T—=F:10%)  HARF
%%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ&

B2 488
ZE’Q; = °

Impact of Impact of Impact of Impact of
HKS$ EURO JPY RMB
BreyE Bizge AEz¥E ARMzyE
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
2014 —E-IF
(Increase) decrease in REEE (BN ED
loss for the year (1,188,000) (50,000) 30,000 (142,000)
2013 —T-=F
(Decrease) increase in AEGEF CRd )L
profit for the year (278,000) (61,000) 15,000 (79,000)
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk,
which primarily relates to variable-rate bank deposits,
bank balances, bank borrowings and bank import
loans. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk, which relates primarily to the fixed-rate other
borrowing and interest-free loan to an available-for-
sale investee and amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary as at 31 March 2014. The
Group has not used any derivative instruments in order
to mitigate its exposure associated with fluctuations
relating to interest cash flows. However, the directors
of the Company monitor interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure
to future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances
as a result of the change of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus variable-rate bank balances are
not included in the sensitivity analysis.

The impact on the Group's cash flow is due in part
to its sensitivity to interest rate which has been
determined based on the exposure to the variable-
rate bank deposits, bank borrowings and bank import
loans. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
point increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HEr—ZF

5.

—OFE=A=+—HIFFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ir)

(iir)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax loss (2013: post-tax profit) for the
year would decrease/increase (2013: increase/decrease)
by approximately HK$797,000 (2013: HK$853,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank deposits, bank
borrowings and bank import loans.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
held-for-trading investments for both years. The
Group’s held-for-trading investments have significant
concentration of price risk in the Hong Kong stock
market. The directors of the Company manage
the exposure by maintaining a portfolio of equity
investments with different risk profiles.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses on held-for-trading investments
during the year have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. For sensitivity analysis purpose,
the sensitivity rate was considered to be at 10% in
the current period. If the prices of the respective
equity instruments had been 10% higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximatelyHK$2,567,000 (2013: post-tax profit
increase/decrease by HK$90,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to advances
to potential investees, trade and other receivables, amount
due from a related company, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances for both years and loans to an available-for-sale
investee and a joint venture as at 31 March 2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on
amount due from a related company as the credit risk is
attributable to a counterparty for both years. The directors
of the Company consider the counterparty with good
credit worthiness based on its past repayment history and
subsequent settlement.

The Group also has significant concentration risk on loans
to an available-for-sale investee and a joint venture and
advances to potential investees. The directors of the Company
continuously monitor the credit quality and financial positions
of the counterparties and the level of exposure to ensure
that the follow-up action is taken to recover the debts. Other
than these, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk in receivables as the exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Under such circumstances, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is not material.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the directors of the Company
review the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents secured
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
financial institutions choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from prevailing market rate at
the end of the reporting period.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

&M T A (&)
MEEREEZBEBEREE

(%)
HEBELEE (&)

Liquidity tables BBk
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total the end of
effective 1 month to 3monthsto  undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year cash flows period
A E
mELS 1848 38 A ReE REMR2
ERA= RER 38R BE aE RESHE
% HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2014 “E-mE
Trade payables BHENTE - - 50,595,079 - 50,595,079 50,595,079
Other payables and accruals Eth AR RIEH B - - 24,912,521 - 24,912,521 24,912,521
Amount due to a non-controlling ER-FMBLR—%
shareholder of a subsidiary FERRENE - 18,731,269 - - 18,731,269 18,731,269
Secured bank import loans BEABRAARER Note 1 ffit1 3,225,544 - - 3,225,544 3,225,544
Secured bank borrowing BEABIEE Note 2 ffit2 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 6,000,000
Secured other borrowing FEREBER 6.24 9,490,568 - - 9,490,568 9,490,568
37,447,381 75,507,600 - 112,954,981 112,954,981
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total the end of
effective 1 month to 3 months to undiscounted the reporting
interest rate On demand 3 months 1 year cash flows period
FTE
METH 18R 3fEA Rene REBRL
RS REX 38R Z1F &5 Eka
% HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
2013 =%
Trade payables B SRR - - 47,331,135 - 47,331,135 47,331,135
Other payables and accruals Eth 3R RIEH B - - 26,702,916 - 26,702,916 26,702,916
Secured bank import loans BEARTAODER Note 1 #it1 1,607,187 - - 1,607,187 1,607,187
1,607,187 74,034,051 - 75,641,238 75,641,238
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liguidity tables (Continued)

Notes:

(1) The secured bank import loans carry interests at Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus spread, ranging from
1.6% t0 2.1% (2013: 1.8% to 2.2%) per annum.

(2) The secured bank borrowing carries interests at HIBOR plus

1.5% per annum.

Secured bank import loans, secured bank borrowing and
secured other borrowing with a repayment on demand clause
as at 31 March 2014 are included in the “on demand” time
band in the above maturity analysis. The carrying amount
of the secured bank import loans, secured bank borrowing
and secured other borrowing amounted to approximately
HK$3,226,000 (2013: HK$1,607,000), HK$6,000,000 (2013:
nil) and HK$9,491,000 (2013: nil) respectively as at 31 March
2014. Taking into account the Group’s financial position
and assets pledged for the borrowings, the directors of the
Company do not believe that it is probable that the financial
institutions would exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate payment. As at 31 March 2014, the directors of
the Company believed that such borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements. The aggregate principal and interest cash
outflows amounted to HK$19,767,770 (2013: HK$1,611,607)
as at 31 March 2014. The repayment schedule based on the
scheduled repayment dates is as follows:

EWMIA (&)

MEREEREEREREEK
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mBELEE (&)
RBEZIFEAEK (E)
Hist -

(1) BRI AQERILEBRITHE
ERENMFEEENTF1.6%E2.1%
TE-=F18%E22% )T E
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@) BEMRITEEREBRITRER
BINEB15%ET8 .

RZEBE-—NMEFE=/A=+—8"H
R EREEBERRZBEBIET
AOER EEARITEERER
HEMEERE FMBIH A ST
ATRENR | vEBEER - =
T—NFE=ZA=1+—1 " BEHFE
TABER AERBERITEERS
HHRHEMEEZCRASEY ALY
#$3,226,0008 L (—ZE— =4 :
1,607,000/ 7T ) * 6,000,000/% JT
(ZZT—=%:1%) %9,491,000/%
T(ZE—ZFE) - ZEIAR
SEZHBEMRAEREERRZ
BE ARAESZHEMBEET
Al BEATIE BN B AE Z KB 3k o 1A
—E-NE=ZA=+—H ' &AQF
BEEHE ZEEEBREERD
EEETEREHEE - N -
—FE=ZA=F+—8 ' x&KFE
e M4E % A19,767,7705% T
T —-=%:1,611,60787T) °
RIFBEERBE  EREEERN
T

2014 2013

—EB-NmEF —=—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FNRN 12,781,552 1,611,607
In the second to fifth year F_ERF 6,986,218 -
19,767,770 1,611,607

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7

Annual Report 2014 F #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. &®IE(E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments ST EZNFEESE
This note provides information about how the Group MR AR EE A B ] 18
determines fair values of various financial assets. SREEATEZER -
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are FEEFEZBEE MR I F
measured at fair value on a recurring basis B EZeREEZNFE
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value REBHDPERMEENSHEH
at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives KIEAFEEFE "HRYHEEE:%
information about how the fair values of these financial assets EeREEATFTEETHE(L
are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and HEMAGERMERBAE) CE
inputs used). ¥lo
Valuation
Fair value technique(s) and

Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy key input(s)
cREE RUTEEZLATE NEEEE HEENMREERAE

2014 2013

—E-mE —F-=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT
Held-for-trading investments 25,668,800 899,400 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an

active market

RIEEERE 25,668,800 899,400 F—/E ERMS 2 EARE

RZMEFE - EHE _EH

I§]

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during both

years.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value of its
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

B

6.

—E-AFE=A=F—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services provided by the Group, less returns
and allowances during the year.

Segment revenue and results

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the property business
is a new operating and reportable segment subsequent to
the Group's acquisition of BEMHEFHEREBR QA
("HiEREHE") (details of which are set out in note 35) and
completion of the acquisition of available-for-sale investment
in ) REFEMERR AR ("HERFME") (details of which

are disclosed in note 19(ii)).

The Group’s reportable and operating segments are therefore

as follows:

(a) Manufacturing and Sales;

(b) Trading;

(c) Artistes management, production and distribution of
music albums and movies (“Music and entertainment”);

(d) Property development and investment (“Property

business”); and

(e) Securities trading.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by operating and reportable segment.

WmkoBEFR (&)

2B WKk EE (&)

AEEZZERABED RS D
ZWaE M EE DT

Revenue Segment profit (loss)
6 28EF (B1])
For the year ended For the year ended

BEZE=-H=1+-HILEE HEZHA=1+-HLEE
31.3.2014 31.3.2013 31.3.2014 31.3.2013

—E-NFE —T—-F ZEBE-NFE —T—=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Manufacturing and Sales RERHE 571,487,872 599,137,110 1,195,301 5,209,070
Trading 25 29,233,588 26,527,940 1,584,409 1,736,119
Music and entertainment EEYEEd 12,547,845 18,084,186 88,617 546,343
Property business MEEH - - 577,772 -
Securities trading EHEE - - (2431,714) 73,269
Total B 613,269,305 643,749,236 1,014,385 7,564,801
Unallocated interest income AA B BUIA 2,041,816 3,944,560
Unallocated corporate expenses AR ESH (16,780,560)  (11,511,606)
Unallocated net foreign exchange loss % Fc9ME E5 185 & (264,603) (726,627)
Impairment loss recognised on RAHHERERR
available-for-sale investments ZREEE (6,518,019)  (10,240,000)
Share of loss of a joint venture BER—REEDE
pd ks (23,595) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKINERA
pal € - 14,431,664
(Loss) profit before taxation BREAT (B1R) & A (20,530,576) 3,462,792

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit represents the loss
incurred/profit earned by each segment without allocation
of certain interest income, certain net foreign exchange loss,
unallocated corporate expenses, impairment loss recognised
on available-for-sale investments, share of loss of a joint
venture and gain on disposal of a subsidiary. This is the
measure reported to the Group’s management for the purpose
of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERTEEH (&)
(Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities RNEFIGKE RS D BEE S
by operating and reportable segment: ZEERBESTHT:
Manufacturing Music and Property Securities
and Sales Trading entertainment business trading  Consolidated
HERHE ES  BRRR% EE #5EE 58
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
B B BT B B B

As at 31 March 2014 R-B-ME=F=1+-H

Segment assets NEEE 460,669,198 14,462,325 17,603,008 100,380,612 25,668,800 618,784,033
Other assets EtEE 279,144,280
Consolidated assets DREE 897,928,313
Segment liabilities EEL 93,115,757 4,319,410 5,958,791 18,910,468 30,000 122,334,426
Other liabilities EmEE 2,825,619
Consolidated liabilities DAERE 125,160,045
Manufacturing Music and Securities

and Sales Trading  entertainment trading Consolidated

HERHEE % EE s HHEE gA

HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$

B BT BT BT B

As at 31 March 2013 W-E—=%#=f=1-H

Segment assets PREE 476,729,915 10,866,871 20,504,402 899,400 509,000,588

Other assets EnEE 372,997,698

Consolidated assets RAEE 881,998,286

Segment liabilities PREE 76,766,316 3,018,203 4,039,013 - 83,823,532

Other liabilities gl 4,014,067

Consolidated liabilities SRaf 87,837,599
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segments performances and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than loan to a joint venture, deposits
for investments, certain available-for-sale investments,
advances to potential investees, certain other
receivables, short-term bank deposits and cash and

cash equivalents.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments other than certain other payables and

accruals.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Wk o BER (&)

THEERERE (F)
RERSARANR D BE D E
BIR:

. BT —RAEERRZE
FREFTE HTAHE
ERE BT EBERIRET
Z BB T E A MK
B REHRITERANE S
EREFEIN IBEES

DEELERAREDER -

B A T B 5 SRR M AT
RN FRERBEOEKE
RENAREDE -

HittpBER
BE-_ZE—-E=ZF=+—HI
FE

Manufacturing Music and Property Securities Segment
and Sales Trading  entertainment business trading total  Unallocated  Consolidated
HERHE 85  BERRY NEXK REER AR AR &8
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
i B b B AT BT AT i
Amounts included in the measure of HENBEEINREER
seqment results or segment assets: TALEE:
Interest income FlEHA - - - 2817,152 - 2817752 2,041,816 4,859,568
Interest expenses FBAX 814,015 - - - - 814,015 - 814,015
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BHAET AR 716916 - - - - 716916 - 716916
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 915 * % Rk &1 & 26,597,071 93,644 123,639 8,955 - 26,823,309 997,435 27,820,744
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEERE - - 574516 - - 574516 - 574516
Wite down of inventories and record masters 5 & B B - - 217929 - - 217,929 - 217,929
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net ~ REEE(EEE 22315 - 39,050 - - 281,365 - 281,365
Gain on disposal of property, HENE HERREL LS
plant and equipment (2,510,682) - - - - (2,510,682) - (2510,682)
Additions to property, plant and equipment 9%+ FRE REERE 10,629,876 304,703 - - - 10,934,579 346,241 11,280,820
Change in fair value of FEEEREZATERY
held-for-trading investments - - - - 2,042,535 2,042,535 - 2,042,535
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF
22 N
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. W@mKkoEER (&)
(Continued)
Other segment information (Continued) HiuoBEER (8)
For the year ended 31 March 2013 Br—EFE—=F=H=+—Hi
FE
Manufacturing Music and Securities Segment
and Sales Trading  entertainment trading total Unallocated  Consolidated
RERHE g5 ERRRS BHEE AR AR ]
HKS HK$ HK$ HK§ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure of ~ FHEAEEER S BEER
segment results or segment assets:  FTAZEE:
Interest income HMBBA - - - - - 3,944,560 3,944,560
Interest expenses FER% 121,603 - - - 121,603 - 121,603
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments JE{+78 & B & 717,624 - - - 717,624 - 717,624
Depreciation of property, nE BERRENE
plant and equipment 28,076,911 7,728 101,949 - 28,186,588 131,646 28,318,234
Amortisation of intangible assets BVEEESR - - 2,298,062 - 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
Write down of inventories and HAFERERES
record masters - - 661,632 - 661,632 - 661,632
(Reversal) allowance for bad and (BE)REEREFS
doubtful debts, net (4,721,492) - 66,700 - (4,654,792) - (4,654,792)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE BERLEZER
plant and equipment 126,214 - - - 126,214 - 126,214
Additions to property, nE BERRERE
plant and equipment 14,087,060 21,863 68,830 - 14,177,753 789,879 14,967,632
Change in fair value of BEEEREZATEED
held-for-trading investments - - - (59,550) (59,550) - (59,550
Revenue from major products and services REFEEMREEzKE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its NTAAREERBEFEER R
major products and services: AR 7% 2 Wz 79 4T
2014 2013
—E-—EF —E—=F
HKS$ HK$
3%775 /%TE
Printing products EN B EE G 600,721,460 625,663,050
Sales of albums PHERE 1,356,352 1,202,953
Artistes management fee income /\ BB U A 3,236,238 3,887,330
Concerts and shows income EIEe RRIEBEIRA 1,404,994 3,795,769
Promotion income i{%uﬂz)\ 4,003,600 6,186,780
Income from the licensing of S8 EREEFIRA
the musical works 2,534,504 2,986,251
Other music and entertainment Hfth = 24 1 1R 45 AR 75
services 12,157 27,103
613,269,305 643,749,236
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HEr—ZF—pmFE=HA=

6.

F— AL

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The Group's income from manufacturing and sales of printing
product operation is derived from Hong Kong and the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC"). The trading of printing
product, music and entertainment business and securities
trading are mainly carried out in Hong Kong. The property
business are carried out in the PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information
about non-current assets by geographical location of the
customers and assets respectively are detailed below:

Wk o BER (&)

i EE R

RERER B BE M iH & EVRIE m
EBZBABRBERTEAR

HME([HE])) -ERERE
%*4m&&“¥%&ﬁ%ﬁai
ERBEEE - MEFXHRFEE

B

AEEXRBEIIBEFZHEZRE

WERBEEZ ENSRIRES
RARE Y P BRI T -

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

RENBEF 2 W& EREBEE

2014 2013 2014 2013
“E-NE —T-=F —E-E —T-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
%7_5 /%I %7_13 /%713
Hong Kong B 283,614,535 275,028,543 37,790,536 36,036,933
The PRC H 189,879,897 197,377,731 258,672,884 290,008,560
Europe M 57,805,909 80,580,423 - -
United States EH 61,602,373 55,703,856 - -
Others Hith 20,366,591 35,058,683 - -
613,269,305 643,749,236 296,463,420 326,045,493

Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments, loan Hlit - SERBEBEIBIBAHEERE

to an available-for-sale investee, derivative financial instrument BF—ZRAHEHEWKREF 2B
FTESRMIT ARG TBERER

CPFa T
ITEREFEHN

nm¢rm BEE-—EPFEEAK
B EiEiBE10% °

and advance to potential investees.

Information about major customers

There is no single customer contributing over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES BHkBzRERE

2014 2013

—F-mF —T=F

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Net foreign exchange gain NG W 2 % 5B 231,658 2,006,616
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEME WEREEZ

plant and equipment Wz (E1E) 2,510,682 (126,214)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts R BR# 5 (281,365) (245,843)

Reversal of allowance for bad debts B o R - 4,900,635

Impairment loss recognised on MAHEERERR L
available-for-sale investments B E 1R (6,518,019) (10,240,000)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—XKB AR 2 W = 14,431,664
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #F{EE E &K E A FEE
investments (2,042,535) 59,550
(6,099,579) 10,786,408
8. FINANCE COSTS B & A
2014 2013
—EF-mEF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on: ATIER ZH &
Bank borrowings and bank AR —FRNEBHEEREZ
import loans wholly repayable RITIEE RIRTT
within one year AOER 634,591 121,603
Other borrowing wholly BARAFRNEBHREEREZ
repayable within five years HEMfEE 179,424 -
814,015 121,603
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

J—
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERTHAZME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2013: 9) KTRENHENTI0R(ZF
directors were as follows: —=F9R)EFZME
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
HiEs FUTES EfEE
SUEK SUEK CHAN LEE LAU
Ka Lun, Chai  Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai TSE CHENG Kwok LUI Lai Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Tin Tai Chi Wai Wan  Ping, Cecily Cheong Total
R EHRE Rt ELE 5B #xz g1k ELH BEW EEE @it
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
(Note)
(Hz)
2014 “E-mE
Fees [ka - - 126,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 45,889 70,000 70,000 - 521,889
Other emoluments Efpie
- Salaries and other benefits  — %4 k£t EF 2,160,000 1,260,000 - - - - - - - 403283 3823283
- Contributions to retiement  — & (k& F5H B3
benefits schemes 15,000 15,000 - - - - - - - 15,000 45,000
Total emoluments Helg 2,175,000 1,275,000 126,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 45,889 70,000 70,000 418,283 4,390,172
Alternate
Executive directors Non-executive directors director
R FaES EfER
SUEK SUEK CHAN LAU
Ka Lun, Chai Kwing Choi, WONG NG Wai TSE CHENG LUI Lai Kam
Ernie Hong Warren Sun Fat Kwan Tin Tai ChiWai Ping, Cecly Cheong Total
xR EEE 30 Eig REE Elped Btk RER A%E 3t
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
T T A o BT T A B BT R
(Note)
(#iit)
2013 —3-=F
Fees ok - - 126,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 - 476,000
Other emoluments e
- Salaries and other benefits  —Z & REMERN 2,160,000 1,260,000 - - - - - - 395847 3815847
~ Contributions to retirement ~ — iR FIEH /4
benefits schemes 14,500 14,500 - - - - - - 14,500 43,500
Total emoluments MesE 2,174,500 1,274,500 126,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 410,347 4335347
Note: Mr. Suek Chai Hong is also the chief executive of the Kz BEBELENARNANTZTHE
Company and his remuneration disclosed above included H ERNEXWECZHMEERER
those for services rendered by him as chief executive. 5 BITBUEE FTIR RIS 2 B & -
No directors of the Company waived any emoluments in any HE_ZEZ-—-NWE=B=1+—H 1
of the two years ended 31 March 2014. MEEE  BENAFTESRET
A& -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e IEHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE—F-—MNF=A=1—HILFE

10. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 10. EEM £

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EAEEREZHESHFATH ME
Group, two (2013: two) were directors of the Company TE—ZF WAB)AARAE
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the E REWE2EFBIEHNLEX -

remaining individuals are as follows: Hep ATz & T
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries and other benefits e kEAMmET 2,972,000 2,872,250
Contributions to retirement RIREFFT B 5K
benefits schemes 99,050 120,650
3,071,050 2,992,900
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMeEENT
2014 2013
—EF-mF —E-=F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH B8 AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/8 7. &
2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3

HE_Z—MOF=A=+—H1IE
MEFE  NEEHBEARNRFE
EH R AT A L SEATBM
& AERIMAREE S MBER 2 8
Bl R R 2 i {E

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office in any of the two years ended 31 March 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

11. TAXATION 11. BIE
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
The taxation charge comprises: BMIBX HEE:
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH
Charge for the year REZ W 1,805,884 3,958,555
Overprovision in prior years BEFTEBRERE - (161,815)
1,805,884 3,796,740
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EMEH 341,955 1,699,505
PRC Withholding tax AR A0 286,414 -
Deferred tax credit for the year REREFIBE %
(note 32) (H1at32) (1,215,121) (3,685,968)
1,219,132 1,810,277

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulations of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

11.

TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

BE (&)
FRELFEGABEEME
E A SRR Z BT AT (B51R ) ) A
BERZBAEMT

2014 2013
—E-NF —zT—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit before taxation BrEEAT (E518) )& A (20,530,576) 3,462,792
Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% LTS %E16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) —E—=%:165%)
AR HIE (3.387,545) 571,361
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ AR 2 2 TS &
for tax purposes 2,029,756 2,919,705
Tax effect of income not taxable DERHBAZRETE
for tax purposes (1,326,897) (3,034,342)
Tax effect of the tax losses not RERTIEEBEZ
recognised g2 5,113,018 1,715,862
Overprovision in respect of prior years — {f &858 B f&5 - (161,815)
Utilisation of tax losses FABERERHRIEEE
previously not recognised (926,679) (778,326)
Effect of different tax rates of REMRDEEREE 2
subsidiaries operating in other M A AR T R
jurisdictions AR - 577,832
Tax effect of share of loss of BlE—REE QR ZEBE
a joint venture 2B 3,893 -
Withholding tax levied on FEANRRIFERKRE
intragroup dividends BN TE TR (286,414) -
Taxation for the year REFIE 1,219,132 1,810,277
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

12. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. XF (EE) &R
2014 2013
—F-—NmF —F—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) profit for the year has been FTEARE (EE) &R
arrived at after charging (crediting): BB (BT A)
Amortisation of intangible assets mEE#E 574,516 2,298,062
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 1,800,000 1,800,000
Cost of inventories recognised as an R ABMA Y 2 FEKRA
expense 485,577,950 519,822,144
Write-down of inventories and record  #URTF & RIEH &%
masters (included in cost of sales) (FFASHEKA) 217,929 661,632
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREZETE
equipment 27,820,744 28,318,234
Amortisation of prepaid lease T8+ A0 & FUOB
payments 716,916 717,624
Rental payments in respect of premises BRALEHRE T W
under operating leases He 13,237,821 12,892,377
Staff costs including directors’ BRESFMESZBEIRA
emoluments
— Salaries, wages and other benefits — e LENEM
=l 171,141,863 150,372,434
— Contributions to retirement —RIREFFHEI X
benefits schemes 2,225,492 1,253,382
Total staff costs 48 TAA 173,367,355 151,625,816
Dividend income (included in other BB WA (BT AEAD
income) WA (424,836) (13,719)
Bank and other interest income RIT R HE AR 2 WA
(included in interest income) (FTAF B U A) (2,041,816) (3,944,560)
Effective interest income on loan to REGKT—RAIHBE
an available-for-sale investee WIREF 2 ERCER
(included in interest income) F B U A
(FEARLEBWA) (2,817,752) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014

EF

13.

14.

—EFE=H=+—HIFFEF

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2014 and 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company for the year is
based on the following data:

13.

14.

i B
HE_Z—NOFER-_T—=F=
A=Z+—RLEFERITERNK
EEREMARE - BHEHRUKRIR
BmEZ TS -

BR (B1R)ER

RERRAHREBEAEBEERER
(B18) BRRATEURAE

2014 2013
—2-QmEF —F-=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of FrEEGRAR (FE)
basic (loss) earnings per share ARz (EE)&BF (21,015,858) 1,671,302
2014 2013
—E-OF —E-=F
Number of shares B EE
Number of shares in issue for the STEERAELR (BE)
purpose of basic (loss) earnings Bz B BITIRE
per share 1,019,354,560 1,019,354,560

No separate diluted (loss) earnings per share information has
been presented as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding for both years.

The number of shares for the calculation of basic (loss)
earnings per share for the years of 2014 and 2013 have
been adjusted to reflect the impact of share consolidation
completed on 5 April 2013.

F 7 R fE 4 2 A I B R AT SN 2
BEE B BB 258K
BE (BR)ANER-

FE T -OERTE—=FF
RER (BE) BF 2 RBEER
B UARBPR - E—=FNARH
TR 2RO EHZE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. W% -BMERZE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Machinery
Construction land and Leasehold and office and Motor
in progress buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HELH BE  BREER
EEIR k&P VES HOERE BERRE RE Eh)
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
BT B B B BT BT B
CosT RA
At 1 April 2012 R-E-—FNA-A 13,790,146 174,114,590 61,296,092 44,028,328 497,041,067 13,549,219 803,819,442
Exchange adjustments EHAE 287,930 1,643,975 262,017 1,042,361 1372379 58,137 4,666,799
Transfer E (2,332,763) 2,037,763 - 115,000 180,000 - -
Additions RE 1,608,211 6,438,305 4,288,036 1,220,795 470,282 942,003 14,967,632
Disposals bt - - (1,266,047) (529,143) - (245,707) (2,040,897)
At 31 March 2013 RZZ-=f=f=+-H 13,353,524 184,234,633 64,580,098 45,877,341 499,063,728 14,303,652 821,412,976
Exchange adjustments ERAE (13,984) (78,392) (28,053) (35,774) (80,396) (4,024) (240,623)
Additions AE 3,211,628 - 614,027 2,563,391 4,576,851 314,923 11,280,820
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-ZHBAR - - - 23,470 - - 23470
Disposals te - - - (3,076,524) (38,174,081) (2,523,730) (43,774,335)
At 31 March 2014 WZE-MF=A=1-H 16,551,168 184,156,241 65,166,072 45,351,904 465,386,102 12,090,821 788,702,308
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2012 RZE-Z§MA-A - 44,435,979 41,301,582 38,529,844 414,055,187 9,532,220 547,854,812
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 532,107 100,012 531,501 956,240 36,659 2,156,519
Provided for the year RERE - 4,247,357 4,108,971 1,568,992 17,023 464 1,369,450 28,318,234
Eliminated on disposals HERYHE - - (1,127,665) (502,686) - (234,282) (1,864,633)
At 31 March 2013 RZZ-=f=f=+-H - 49,215,443 44,382,900 40,127,651 432,034,891 10,704,047 576,464,932
Exchange adjustments EHAE - (56,219) (21,435) (28,087) (71,291) (3,097) (180,129)
Provided for the year KERE - 5,045,112 5,057,290 2,024,074 14,409,533 1,084,735 27,820,744
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - - - (3,076,185) (37,110,256) (1,559,896) (41,746,337)
At 31 March 2014 WZE-MF=A=1-H - 54,204,336 49,418,755 39,247,453 409,262,877 10,225,789 562,359,210
CARRYING VALUES RE®
At 31 March 2014 WZE-WMF=A=1-H 16,551,168 129,951,905 15,747,317 6,104,451 56,123,225 1,865,032 226,343,098
At 31 March 2013 WZE-=F=fA=1-H 13,353,524 135,019,190 20,197,198 5,749,690 67,028,837 3,599,605 244,948,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

EF

15.

—EFE=H =+ —HIFFEF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line

basis at the following rates per annum:

15.

Y- MERHRE (FE)

FRME BERREER (R
TRBSN 2 578 SRR N TEHR
CEAE T ES R

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease MELH R  RBELHHRIH30
terms or 30 — 50 years EF £50F
(AEREE
Leasehold improvements 12.5% — 20% HEWERE 12.5% -20%
Furniture, fixtures and office ~ 10% — 25% HEM-EER 10% -25%
equipment WMRERE
Machinery and equipment 10% - 25% s kB 10% -25%
Motor vehicles 25% E 25%
2014 2013
—E-MF —z—=
HK$ HK$
BT o
The carrying values of leasehold land ~ F#tFAE +ith RiEF >
and buildings shown REERE:
above comprise:
Leasehold land and buildings IR E I LA BAFE 49
in Hong Kong under medium-term BEZHEEL R
leases BF 28,183,580 29,116,109
Buildings in the PRC under iz 5 HR B A LA BAAE 49
medium-term leases BEZEF 101,768,325 105,903,081
129,951,905 135,019,190

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$28,183,580 (2013: HK$29,116,109) have been
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities granted

to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$8,587,150 (2013: nil) has been pledged to a
financial institution for secured other borrowing.

BRME A 28,183,580/ Tt 2 ¥
¥ WMEMEKEBE(ZZ—=F:
29,116,109 L) E B FRTT -
EAAEBERZ —RIBITEE
LR

BRE(E A 48,587,150 T 2 ¥
¥ BEREKEB(ZZT—=4F:
EIDER T —RUEEE 1ER
HihfgEZ M-

Neway Group Holdings Limited F 2 £ MZE R GR 2 7

Annual Report 2014 F #§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE—F—pFE=F=+—HIFF

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. ENHEEME
2014 2013
—F-NmF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
The Group's prepaid lease REEZEMNEE
payments comprise: HIEBE:
Medium-term leasehold land AL AR BN AR HAAR 49
in the PRC BHEzHEELH 32,654,977 33,404,246
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REmOTWT:
Non-current asset IEREEE 31,938,061 32,686,622
Current asset MENEE 716,916 717,624
32,654,977 33,404,246
The leasehold land is charged to consolidated statement of HELH NIREGEERNTGTH
profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight- WHRNBGEEEREEME2TEW
line basis over the remaining term of the leases. AR FEHBR -
17. DEPOSITS FOR LAND USE RIGHTS 17. TiFRAER

Deposits of approximately HK$18,290,000 (2013:
HK$18,291,000) were paid for land use rights situated in
the PRC to the PRC local government. The completion of
the purchases is pending for receiving the land use right
certificates, as such, the amounts paid for the land use rights
are recorded as deposits at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Artiste
contracts Trademark Total
Z2AEHN e et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
COosT R
At 1 April 2012, RZZE—Z—FWA—R-
31 March 2013 and —E—=FZA=+—HK
31 March 2014 —E-mF=ZA=+—H 9,192,248 5,317,632 14,509,880
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 April 2012 R-_ZE——FmMA—H 6,319,670 - 6,319,670
Charge for the year FAZH 2,298,062 - 2,298,062
At 31 March 2013 R-ZZE—=F=A=+—H 8,617,732 - 8,617,732
Charge for the year FAXZH 574,516 - 574,516
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE—NF=A=+—H 9,192,248 - 9,192,248
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NMF=A=+—H - 5,317,632 5,317,632
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=A=+—H 574,516 5,317,632 5,892,148

Artiste contracts, which have definite useful lives, are
amortised over the contract term (4 years) on a straight-line
basis.

The trademark is considered by the management of the Group
as having an indefinite useful life because it is expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. Various studies
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and
environmental trends, and brand extension opportunities have
been performed by management of the Group, which supports
that the trademark has no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the trademarked products or services are expected to
generate net cash flows for the Group. The trademark will
not be amortised until its useful life is determined to be finite.
Instead it will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that it may be impaired.

ABREBRAERFN  UE
i?xﬂﬁ WFEH (4 ) -

HRBEHEEIERAEEHES
MAER MAREEREERRS
BEABERAEAFEY AEEE
EFELﬁyEﬁ%*@%EﬁE
AT TS HE MIRRES
ﬁu&mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁ%ﬂﬁi
FESEREBERRRERIREA
RAKREELFR SR AL E
AEAHR ARG TEH#E 8
EHAFEAFHEEREBRYAS
koA RS EFRRETR
R Rl RE KRR E R E T TRER

A ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangible assets have
been allocated to the CGUs of music and entertainment
business. The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been
determined based on a value in use calculation, which
approximates to fair value less costs to sell. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-years period and
discount rate of 17.46% (2013: 20.5%). The cash flows
beyond the 5-years period are extrapolated having a steady
2% (2013: 2%) growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
budgeted growth rate, which is determined by management’s
expectations for the market development, and does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry. Other key assumption of the value in use calculation
is based on the budgeted cash inflow/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin on respective products and
services from the CGU, such estimations are based on the past
performance. No impairment on intangible assets was noted
for both years and management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of the assumption would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

For the purpose of impairment testing of artiste contracts
as at 31 March 2013, the carrying amount of each artiste
contract was compared with the recoverable amount of each
individual artiste. The recoverable amount of each artiste
had been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets of respective artistes covering their unexpired contract
periods and discount rate. The key assumption of the value
in use calculation of each artiste was based on the budgeted
cash inflow/outflows that the each artiste will be earned
or expenses incurred through products sold and services
rendered, such estimations are based on the past performance.
No impairment on artiste contracts was noted for year ended
31 March 2013.
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REARMES  BFEECE SR
EERNIRBEER I ReELE
f-ZEReEEEM2AKEIS
BILFAEETAEF A (EAF
BEREEKANES)EE %t ®
FEFERUAREEBSEM 2 AE
MY BKBEEREECHEGRER
B LA K17.46% (Z B — =4
205% ) 2T EER - AFHUINZ
ReR2AER2% (ZE—=
Fi2%) 2 BEBREES - 238
ERUZREERBYHMBERE Y
FEHAMEE AT BEEETEYT
HRARXR 7 BERRXR AR
- FHEEFEHEZZCHEMES
BERUBSRA S/ REBEAE
- ERheRNBAERRAKEM
HEReELSENSHERR
ARFGTEEHERE R ERNE - ZME
FEMEREFREESSTMAR
& EREEBHREEABREZEMNE
By resiieEt
B EREREERARCELESE
iz AT Bl 48 & 5F -

MR -_E—=F=A=+—HZ
BAGHETRENRANS  &—
BBEBAGYZEASBEET —F
BAZAREEREIELR - B—F
Az e & EIRERBE
B EEE - BETE R AFRAU
F—RBAZHEEE (REE—
FEANZREMENER) B
ZEeREBAIRTER F—F
BAZFEREEFEREZZ2EE
BENE—BEABEALEE
mn N R 4 AR 7 T B ER 2k 2 8H < 3R
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T =-A=1+—HItFEH
EREBEASLESEMRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/LOAN
TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTEE/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

AHHERE HF—FA
AHEEHKRERZ
B TE4MIT A

2014 2013
—E-0mF —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Available-for-sale investments AHEERERE:
comprise:
Unlisted equity securities incorporated 73 K #8 B B 7 ffff Ak 32
in Republic of Korea (note ) 2 IEETRRAFE FH
(K7ati) 7,500,000 13,010,000
Unlisted equity securities established in A BIAK 2 2 3 ETH
the PRC (note i) WA TE 2 (B i) 16,238,802 -
23,738,802 13,010,000

The above unlisted equity investments are measured at cost
less impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

Notes:

In September 2012, the Group acquired further equity interest
in this entity at a consideration of US$2 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$15,490,000) from an independent third
party.

On 13 June 2013, the Group has subscribed for additional
shares upon the rights issue of this entity at a consideration of
HK$1,008,019.

The directors of the Company performed an impairment
assessment based on the present value of estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated from the investment
and the proceeds of ultimate disposal of the investment.
The disposal value is determined by reference to the recent
sale transaction of the shares in the same investee and an
impairment loss of HK$6,518,019 (2013: HK$10,240,000) is
recognised to profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2014.

R 3 AT A A R EBN A
X KB A A ER AT
b3t 8 QA8 - B I A
5 R 5 B R SRR (H R
E) 58 -

Wt

—E-ZFNA AEEAE—F
BUE=HE—TUEREEE R
s - (& 52,000,000% 7T (17
& R #915,490,000/8 7T ) °

A

R-ZB-—=ZFXA+=RA %%
[ 7 Ut B R TT HARIR  AR(E
1,008,019/ BN R BB D ©

RABEFUNBHRZBREEELY
HEtRRESREZEERRZKRE
ERE 2B RBEEITRE -
HEBEDSEIHR—WRES
BN ZHERXSHET  MBEE=T
—ME=A=+—ALFEZER
B #REEE 186,518,019/ 7T
(ZZ—=%:10,240,00087T) °
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cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/LOAN
TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTEE/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group signed
a capital injection agreement with shareholders of
FEHbEE, which are all independent third parties, to inject
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,502,000)
in HEEREE, representing approximately 16.67% equity
interest of the enlarged paid-in capital of HEEME. HERE
HBEE is principally engaged in the property development in the
PRC. The capital injection was already made during the year
ended 31 March 2013 and classified as “advances to potential
investees”.

On the same date of the capital injection agreement by the
Group, the Group signed a loan agreement with HZ#E it
E that the Group granted an unsecured interest-free loan of
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$37,504,000)
("Shareholder’s Loan”) to ## EH#1ZE during the year ended
31 March 2013, repayable within three years from loan
advance date. At initial recognition, the fair value of the loan
is HK$28,177,517 which is measured at an effective interest

rate of 10% per annum.
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AEFE AEBHIERFME
ZRE(HBBLE=H)F]
AEWME MEEFRMHETA
AR #10,000,0007T (HHER L
12,502,000 70) " lHE R EEE
Hh FE AR K B ULE AR 4916.67 %%
AiEs o HEEMET ZRPEK
BEYEBRR -ZEIEDREBES
T-=F-A-t+—BIEFERNE
W oER A TEERKRER
Z8R] e
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WLEE REBRLTE HE
AR HEEEHERITERR
HOBAAEERTRERMER
#H A R #30,000,0007T (HHER
#937,504,0007%8 L) 2 EIE #H &
BER(IBEER])  ERAH
EXBHEF=FRNEE-RY
WHERE REERZAFEA
28,177,517 7T TYIR BB F | &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

19.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/LOAN
TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTEE/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(Continued)

Furthermore, the Group signed a put option deed with the
immediate holding company of the major shareholder of ##
EHbZE, who has indirectly held 61.67% equity interest in %
#ZEEME, pursuant to which a put option was granted to the
Group to dispose of the Group's entire equity interest in 2
ZEEME through the disposal of HEFHE's intermediate
holding company and the remaining Shareholder’s Loan at a
consideration of the higher of RMB52 million or amount equal
to 16.67% of the performance target, in each case, less the
repayment of the Shareholder’s Loan. The performance target
is based on cumulative sales proceeds accrued by HZEFE
JEE in respect of a specific real estate project during the period
from 27 February 2013 up to and including 26 February 2016
to be audited by an independent auditor jointly appointed
by the Group and the major shareholder. If the performance
target is not available, the consideration shall be deemed to be
RMB52 million less the repayment of the Shareholder’s Loan.
The put option can be exercised within 6 months from 26
February 2016.

In September 2013, the Group completed the capital injection
process. The put option deed became effective upon the
completion of the capital injection in HEREHZE and
advancement of Shareholder’s Loan.

In the totality of the above, the Group completed its
investment in HEEFHE with the total consideration of
RMB40 million (equivalent to approximately HK$50,685,000),

comprising of:

(i) the 16.67% equity interest in HEREME of
HK$16,238,802 classified as “available-for-sale

investments”;

19. AIHEERE HBKF—F
AHHERRERZ
EX TE€MTI A
(#&)

)

i (#8)

BN AREERBEEREE L 2
REZEZERAR (BEFFE
HEEMEGT.67%MAKER ) FRAT
ROLEARE R Rt AEEER
ROLEARE  TEALNERERME
ZARMER AR B TREER
HEAEERIERME Y 23
gz REAARMES2,000,000
THEENRKRRBIR1667%2E
BOARSEALE)  WHNHRKE
BERER - REABRER-_T—=
FE-A-+HHEE-_ZT—RFE_A
Z+RNA(REZA)BHERER
wERFEEMEER 28 2 25T
HEMBHRE (BHAEEREZE
ERBARZEZ B L ZBAE
P FTE R ERREBZ
AR EE R & EAKRH52,000,000
TLIR R B SR 5K o sh HARE ] R
BT R"F-A-+/NHEFA
8 A AITE -

RZZE—=FNA FEETHRE
BiBiE - RA MERBENTHOEE
REFMERBNERERZRE
o

RAELmE AEEBLARE
AR #40,000,0007T (HHE R4
50,685,00078 7T ) FE Ak 74 B 2 55 1
EZRE EHReiE:

(i) HERUE16.67 % IR ATE
5T & 216,238,802/8
T oA TIPSR
=i
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFFEF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/LOAN 19. AHEHERE HBF—H&
TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTEE/ ARHERRER Z
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT EXR TEEMIA
(Continued) (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mtat: (88)
i (Continued) i (&)

(i) Shareholder’'s Loan with an initial fair value of (ii) BREF VB ATFESR
HK$28,177,517 carried at amortised costs and 28,177,517 T 12 # 88
classified as “loan to an available-for-sale investee”; KABIER W nEA (4T
and —ZAHHERKRET 2

Bl &k

(iii) put option to dispose of the Group’s entire equity (iii) EREEREEMEY
interest in HEFEHIZE through the disposal of % FAERA A R TIARR
FEREME's intermediate holding company and BER HEREEREE
remaining Shareholder’s Loan with the fair value of FHEZ 2BREAER 2
the put option at the date of initial recognition of ROLEAE RV ER A
HK$6,268,198 and classified as “derivative financial 2 N F{E7%6,268,198/8
instrument”. TR IITEERT

Bl

The fair value of put option is measured by the Black-Scholes RO 2 AT ERRYVIIATERE

option pricing model based on the fair value of the 16.67% FREGHREEEIRRBRER

equity interest in ZIEFMIE at initial recognition and the HEE16.67 %R AR 2 A FEET

following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of 8 DAMRER I LAGT H 04 B

put option. ZNFE

Exercise price (note i) RMB22,000,000 1710 1(E AR #22,000,00070

(Hiiti)
Expected life of options 2.5 years TEHEARE Y 255
Expected volatility (note i) 30.43% EHEDR B 30.43%
(Hizii)

Expected dividend yield 0% EHREE 0%

Risk-free rate 3.84% mEBRFE  3.84%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input EHETEREAZkBASEE

of highly subjective assumption, including the volatility of BR& BERERE - TB&EA

share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can [EE S EIEIPN 2 VNS S-L i

materially affect the fair value estimate.
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e MR ER M

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFFEF

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS/LOAN 19.

TO AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTEE/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@

(ii)

(Continued)

The exercise price is based on RMB52 million less
the Shareholder’s Loan at the date of completion of
capital injection of RMB30 million as the exercise price
is deemed to include a guarantee for the repayment
of the Shareholder’s Loan.

The expected volatility of the put option is based on
the historical daily share price movements of a set of

AHHERE HBF—F
AHHERKRER Z

B tTEem I A
(#&)

BaE: (48)

i (#8)

(i) HRITEEHRRARE
BEERFERZER:
MOEEBDHEBARE
52,000,0007T J3 7 & 52K
EAZRERERARE
30,000,0007C5T & »

(i) SR B 2 TR 08 T A
—HEAALBRARIBE2S

comparable companies over a historical period of 2.5 EVBASARESHA
years. ERo
20. LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE 20. BF—FREBRLATZER
2014 2013
—E-MF =%
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost of investment in an unlisted joint M—RIELHTAEERNEZ
venture FE KA 8 -
Share of post-acquisition losses and FE(R U IR 18 B 18 2 Bl
other comprehensive expense 2HF Y (8) -
Loan to a joint venture (Note) BT —REERFIZER
(K1az) 4,000,000 -
Share of post-acquisition losses and FEMR U IR 12 B 18 2 EAh
other comprehensive expense 2HEMAX (23,587) -
3,976,413 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014

HEr—ZF—

PFE=H=+—HIFFE

20. LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

Note:

Pursuant to the shareholder agreement entered into between

a subsidiary of the Company, Reliance Partner Limited, and

other shareholder of the joint venture, the loan to a joint

venture is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed repayment

terms. The loan to a joint venture is classified as non-current

assets because, in the opinion of the directors, the loan will

not be repaid within the next twelve months from 31 March

2014.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had interest in the following

joint venture:

20. %4
(%)

III

Wi

ae —_— ==
RoT—
A=

—REERAZER

1B 3% A A 7 Mf B A @l Reliance
Partner Limitedf2& %f A E AR
?nTiZHX?WJm BT—RaE
RElZEFRAEER 25 BER
EEFH - BT —RELERAIZE
ROBERERDEE RAAES
REEEEFBITERE-T—N0
F=ZA=t+—HRsFRR+=@EA
WNEE-

ME=ZA=1+—H X%

ERUTEERAEE R

Proportion of

Form of Principal nominal value
business Country of place of Class of of issued capital Proportion of Principal
Name of entity structure incorporation operation share held held by the Group voting power held activities
HREERE
BREE EBEREA ERALER TEERMEY FrisRBER BRTRAEELA EFERERLS TEER
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZB-MmEF -T-=4F ZB-MF -T-=%
% % % %
Reliance Partner Limited Incorporated Anguilla Hong Kong Ordinary 50 - 50 - Investment holding
il REW i AR REER
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cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014

B

20.

21.

—E-AFE=A=F—HIFE

LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 20. BT REEQTIZER
(&
Summarised financial information of a joint —REEPNTIZHBERHNE
venture
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s REFBEENAIZHBERBE
joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial ﬁﬁljyuToL/{Tﬁjﬁggﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁgg
information below represents amounts shown in the joint ZEENTIRBRE B BREL
venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with AR 7 B R R Ra % -
HKFRSs.
The joint venture has accounted for using the equity method in N EEEIBHRERAN ZEE2R
these consolidated financial statements. AT AERIEARR-
Reliance Partner Limited Reliance Partner Limited
2014 2013
—E—F —_F—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Current assets mENEE 12,354,303 -
Current liabilities mE B & (101,000) -
Non-current liabilities FEnBEE (12,300,485) -
Revenue Wz - -
Loss for the year REFE (47,190) -
DEPOSITS FOR INVESTMENTS 21. REFT®
During the year ended 31 March 2013, an additional deposits Hez—_Z2—=9=-A=+—81t
of RMB13,379,000 (approximately HK$16,301,000) was FE AKBECREEREREHE
paid for the acquisition of 60% equity interest in H &5 60% AR MBI AR
. As at 31 March 2013, the Group had paid in aggregate 3, 379 0007t (4716,301,000
RMB19,379,000 (approximately HK$24,227,000). /&5 & b & BIL) RZE—=F=A=+—

is principally engaged in the property investment in the PRC.
The acquisition is completed in July 2013.

SR LKEIE:./\EZH/\EM
19,379,0007T (4924,227,000/%
o) cRBERHMEFERPEEE
YIHERE - ZBEREERN T —=
FHAFEK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

22. ADVANCES TO POTENTIAL INVESTEES 22. BRTBEBRBERZER
2014 2013
—F-NmF —F=%F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Advance to EE® 2T (\8) BRARF KB TESZE (BE)
("ESZa") ERAR([[Ed®
s ) 23R
— subscription money (note (i) —REBFIE (WEZa0) 24,975,025 25,003,125
Advance to T B i E BTRERMEZ
B
— subscription money (note (i) — R FIE (K aE0)) = 12,501,563
- loan to TEFEHEE (note (i) — I THRERMEZBX
(A7 a2 i) ) - 28,177,517
— deemed contribution to REREIME —RIEMEEREMEEL
(note (ii}) ZERK (B i) - 9,326,758
24,975,025 75,008,963

Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group signed a
sale and purchase agreement with one of the shareholders
of [E© 258, an independent third party, to acquire 40%
equity interest in [E&)Z 25 with zero consideration. The
acquisition process was not completed as at 31 March 2014
and 31 March 2013 and is subject to the approval from the
Ministry of Commerce of the PRC. Subsequent to the entering
into of the sale and purchase agreement, the Group injected
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$24,975,000)
to &2 28 based on its proportion of shareholdings and such
advance will become its paid-up capital upon the completion
of acquisition. Accordingly, the capital injection is recognised
as advance to a potential investee and will become investment

cost upon completion of the acquisition.

%7228 has not yet commenced business as at 31 March
2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

22,

23.

ADVANCES TO POTENTIAL INVESTEES 22. BTBERREFZBR

(Continued) (48)

Notes: (Continued) BtaE: (48)

(i) The amount represented the subscription money of (ii) LSRR ERERE
RMB 10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,502,000) (MEBYE=F)RIZ2EEWH
to HEE M E based on the capital injection agreement with s AT REREME Y REZRE
shareholders of %% E il &, which are all independent third AR #10,000,0007T (FHERY
parties. The capital injection was not completed as at 31 12,502,000% 7T) cZBEEE R =
March 2013. The capital injection process was completed in E—=F=ZA=t—HEEKRTEK-
September 2013 and details are disclosed in note 19(ii). AERFER-_ZE—=ZFhLAR

B FEIB M FE19G) 3 58 -

(iif) As disclosed in note 19(ii), the Group granted the (iii) AR FE19GN)FT I B8 - AL B A
Shareholder’'s Loan to HZEFH1E. At initial recognition, EEWERIRRER - BHK
the fair value of the Shareholder’s Loan amounting to 28,177,517 T2 REER 2 AT
HK$28,177,517 is measured at an effective interest rate of ERVIATER IR E R ENE10%
10% per annum. The difference amounting to HK$9,326,758 st 2 B4 %837,504,275/%8 7T
between the principal of the loan of HK$37,504,275 and BEZHAF(E28,177,5178 T2
fair value of the loan of HK$28,177,517 represented the 7 FERE9,326,758 7T AR VEMA H
deemed contribution to Z£ZE & i E will be considered as the ERMEEL BB FEKES
investment cost upon completion. WRABTRERAK -

INVENTORIES AND RECORD MASTERS 23. FERIEAFE

2014 2013
—Z-IF —T—=%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Inventories: FE:

Raw materials JR# ¥ 24,370,164 38,467,662
Work in progress &M 15,119,552 11,742,878
Finished goods 25K M 37,406,920 26,809,723
76,896,636 77,020,263

Record masters ISy S 3,203,908 1,831,537
80,100,544 78,851,800
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR 24, FEBEDWE
SALE
HK$
BT
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 RZTE—Z—FMWA—AR
—FT-=F=A=+—H -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) Uk RE B B A 7] (#15#35) 43,445,764
Additions RE 3,516,675
Exchange differences [EH =58 (591,979)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZEBE-—NE=A=+—H 46,370,460

The properties under development for sale of the Group are
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under
medium-term leases.

The properties under development for sale classified as current
assets as at 31 March 2014 are expected to be completed and
sold more than twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

25. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

AEEZFEERTFYRMLRT
B YEXRRETHEESE 2L
Mo fE FAHE L -

R-F-—ME=A=+—0 58
BRBAEZSERRTNEES
RS IR BA T —EARTR
i -

25. HFEERE

2014 2013

—2-mEF —F=F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &8 MR AEH 25,668,800 899,400
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

The Group's credit terms on manufacturing and sales and
trading of printing products business generally range from
60 to 90 days. A longer period is granted to a few customers
with whom the Group has a good business relationship and
which are in sound financial condition. The Group allows an
average credit period of 45 days to its customers of artistes
management, production and distribution of music albums. An
ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
doubtful debts is presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period.

26.

BEZ R EMERRIR - M
RMIBURET &

AEENRERRE HERE
S %% 2 EEHR —% A60£90
He VEEAERERTEEBRRE
BB ARTFZEPAZAR
RZEEHR AEEZEAEE -
BHERBITELERERETRFZ
SEHR Y A45H - RIS H
KB SREWHE (ENBRRE
BB RO B ERERSE
Bl o

2014 2013
—2-mF —z—=

HK$ HK$
BT TT

Manufacturing and sales and trading ~ ENfE R EE - HE KX

of printing products operation: RS E
0 — 30 days 0£30H 84,985,696 75,922,284
31 - 60 days 31260H 10,864,660 21,030,851
61 - 90 days 61290H 5,777,668 6,752,180
Over 90 days HBiE0H 5,204,279 5,207,497
106,832,303 108,912,812
Music and entertainment operation: EEJCES S

0 — 45 days 0£45H 918,099 1,682,323
46 - 90 days 46E90H 423,374 82,354
91 - 180 days 912180H 154,667 20,589
1,496,140 1,785,266
Total trade receivables B S RWIRER 108,328,443 110,698,078

Deposits, prepayments and & TENREREM
other receivables JE U SR IE 17,175,463 22,030,751
125,503,906 132,728,829
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=HA=+—HIFFEF

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Trade receivables of approximately HK$18,896,000 (2013:
HK$23,377,000) was denominated in USD, the currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly. Approximately 95% (2013: 95%) of trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have the best credit
quality. These customers have no default of payment in the
past and have good credit rating attributable under the credit
review procedures used by the Group, including profitability,
liquidity, financial leverage and operational performance
quality of the counterparties.

The Group has a policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectibility and
ageing analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgement
including the creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each client.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$5,782,000
(2013: HK$5,310,000), which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the trade receivable and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables is
131 days (2013: 121 days).
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FEEERFZEEEZRIZE
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BTYEPZZEREE-#95% (=
T — =4 :95% ) W AR 8 B I AR
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T B ERREBRAER)H
ESRIEEFH-

R EE R E KRB G E K
R HABCRYIRENR B 2 Al
BRE M ERE DT AR EREE
2 (BREEREFPZEENGE
TEI& SRR ) il 5E

AEBECEZRWFIEBEF 81
BR T 48 %8 495,782,000/ T (=&
— =%:5,310,000/8 7T ) 2 FE W
B o ZERIWFIERNRERRE
EH EAREEY ERBRESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

cale by E TS

For the year ended 31 March 2014

EF

26.

—EFE=H =+ —HIFFEF

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired

26.

BEZ R EMERRIR - M
RIBEURETE (&)

[SEIEREE:S
MIE 2 BRiR

RE 2 B 5 B

2014 2013
—E-nEF %=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Printing operation: ENfRI €75
91 to 180 days 91%180H 5,204,279 5,207,497
Music and entertainment operation: FRERIRGEET -
46 — 90 days 46%290H 423,374 82,354
91 - 180 days 91%180H 154,667 20,589
Total BET 5,782,320 5,310,440
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERE2ET
2014 2013
—E—-NF —E—=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Balance at beginning of the year FH 2,201,174 9,057,769
Impairment losses recognised BLIE W RIEHE R
on receivables BEEE 281,365 245,843
Reversal of bad debt (Note) AR (HiE) = (4,900,635)
Amounts written off as uncollectible T B 2 iR 58 (281,365) (2,212,130)
Exchange realignment IE 5 % (410) 10,327
Balance at end of the year FRES 2,200,764 2,201,174

Note: The reversal of bad debts is recognised upon the settlement by

the counterparty.

Wrat: SEERBERNE B ERER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2014

B

26.

27.

—EFE=H=+—HIFFEF

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
(Continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
approximately HK$163,000 (2013: HK$163,000) which have
been in severe financial difficulties in repaying the outstanding
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date on which credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period. The trade receivables
past due but not provided for as at the end of the reporting
period were either subsequently settled or no historical default
of payments was noted by the respective customers. The
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated. The directors believe that there is
no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY

Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who can exercise significant
influence over the Company, is one of the ultimate owners of
the related company. The Group’s credit terms to the related
company is 30 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

27.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY
(Continued)

An ageing analysis of amount due from a related company

27.

Bl —REBEQRAKE
(&)
AT ARBEARREERERH

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the Y zEN—REEANTINIEY
reporting period. ARER D #T o

2014 2013
—E-MF —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT T
0 — 30 days 0£30H 866,623 859,600
31 - 60 days 31260H 1,233,360 2,150,000
61 — 90 days 61£90H 1,495,272 2,115,360
91 — 180 days 912180H 100,000 1,032,000
Over 180 days #RiE180H 338,801 309,101
4,034,056 6,466,061

Included in the amount due from a related company with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,167,433 (2013:
HK$5,606,461), which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as the amount is subsequently settled. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of
these receivables is 72 days (2013: 90 days).

Ageing of amount due from a related company

FEW —RESE A RIFIEF  BIEE
M 42%83,167,4338 T (T —=
% :5,606,461870) 2B ZE
HRERRERARE B HEAE
EIE R R EE IR REZ
EREFEHEDBE AEBEWE
MEEEBTETMIER - Z5E
WHBEZzFEHERAT2B (=
—=4%: 90H)

C M EERE 2 ER— X

which are past due but not impaired BAE N T IE 2 R

2014 2013

—E—-NE ==

HK$ HK$

BT BT
31 - 60 days 31E60H 1,233,360 2,150,000
61 — 90 days 61%Z90H 1,495,272 2,115,360
91 - 180 days 91Z180H 100,000 1,032,000
Over 180 days FR3E180H 338,801 309,101
Total Bt 3,167,433 5,606,461
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2014

B

28.

—EFE=H=+—HIFFEF

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash comprise
cash held by the Group and bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. Bank balances and short-
term bank deposits of approximately HK$14,691,000 (2013:
HK$32,462,000), HK$14,228,000 (2013: HK$3,327,000),
HK$601,000 (2013: HK$735,000) and HK$1,810,000 (2013:
HK$1,104,000) were denominated in USD, HK$, EURO and
RMB respectively, the currencies other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities.

Further, included in the short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash are amounts denominated in RMB of
approximately HK$94,566,000 (2013: HK$75,202,000), which
are not freely convertible into other currencies.

The bank balances and short-term bank deposits carry interest
rates with a range from 0.1% to 2.5% (2013: 0.1% to 2.5%)
per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 29. ESRHEHMEBEAREUR
ACCRUALS st IE
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payable presented LT ARNREHARBEIERZEHE
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. 25 7B ENRIBERE DT
2014 2013
—E-EF —E—=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 35,037,646 41,559,490
- 60 days 31£60H 12,745,185 4,897,595
61 — 90 days 61%290H 2,703,904 874,050
Over 90 days #Bi890H 108,344 -
50,595,079 47,331,135
Accrued expenses and other payables — fEFTE 3 & EAth JE (508 24,912,521 26,702,916
75,507,600 74,034,051
The credit period ranged from 90 days to 120 days. The Group FEHNF0EI120H - ANEEFE
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that I ETIEER EIEHER  ARERAT
all payables within the credit timeframe. BRENFIBREAZ -
Trade payables of approximately HK$108,000 (2013: R-ZZE—-—NE=A=+—H" 5
HK$154,000), HK$358,000 (2013: HK$184,000) and £ 6 %IJZU108 0008 T (ZE—=
HK$214,000 (2013: HK$439,000) were denominated in F 154 000/’% JC) *358,000/%8
RMB, JPY and USD respectively, the currencies other than the T(ZE—= 184 000/ 7T)
functional currency of the respective group entities as at 31 &214,000/% T(ZE—=%:
March 2014. 439,000 7T) 2 B 5 HRIBH
FIAARYE - BEMETAEAM
FEHEENEBEEE LR
lﬁg o
30. AMOUNT DUE TO A NON-CONTROLLING 30. BN —ZRHWEBAR—A&

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayment on
demand.

FERKRRKE

ZEFEAERT 2B NAKRE
KIEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

31. BORROWINGS 58
The following table provides an analysis of the borrowings: TRIEHEE ZH9HT:
2014 2013
—E-0mF —Z—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Secured bank borrowing (Note a) BIEBRITEE
(Kiita) 6,000,000 -
Secured bank import loans (Note b) BEMRITALDER
(B1ath) 3,225,544 1,607,187
Secured other borrowing (Note ¢) BEMPHMEE
(Hritc) 9,490,568 -
18,716,112 1,607,187
Carrying amount of secured bank BRMmERRET —FA
borrowing that is repayable within BEIVHBREREE
one year from the end of the Rz BERIRITEE
reporting period and contains a ZHRERE
repayment on demand clause 6,000,000 -
Carrying amount of secured bank BRHRERRET—FA
import loans that are repayable BEITHBREREER
within one year from the end of Bz BEMRITAD
the reporting period and contains a BERZERAeE
repayment on demand clause 3,225,544 -
Carrying amount of secured other HBERERERERZ
borrowing that contains a BEBHMETZ
repayment on demand clause: ARE &R -
— repayable within one year — AR —FANEE 2,969,909 -
— repayable more than one year, —ER—FRERFEN
but not exceeding two years EiE 3,159,520 -
— repayable more than two years —ERMERER 3,361,139 -
18,716,112 1,607,187
Amount due within one year shown R RBBEET 2
under current liabilities R—FRNEIHZ 3B (18,716,112) (1,607,187)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9]

Secured bank borrowing

The secured bank borrowing is repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period but contains a repayment on
demand clause and carries interest at HIBOR plus 1.5% per

annum.

Secured bank import loans

The secured bank import loans are repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period but contain a repayment
on demand clause and carry interest at HIBOR plus spread,
ranging from 1.6% to 2.1% (2013: 1.8% to 2.2%) per

annum.

Secured bank import loans of HK$3,225,544 (2013:
HK$1,607,187) were denominated in USD, the currency other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Secured other borrowing

The secured other borrowing is repayable within three years
from the end of the reporting period but contains a repayment
on demand clause and bears a fixed interest rate of 6.235%
per annum and secured by property, plant and equipment with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$8,587,150.

B8 (&)

Bt

(a) BIRFRTEE
BEMRITEEENIRS BHREE
—FREEEAHEREREER
;o WIRBBRITREFR S INFEF
K1 5% 8o

(b) BEMBITADER
BRI AOERBRRERE
B —ENEEESEREREE
IGRC WIRBE B RITRZERBMEF
BENT16%E21% (ZZT—=
F18%E22% ) NFTE -

AR 1T A O B 503,225,544
T (=ZZFE—=%:1,607,187% )
LAZETT AN METI FEER &

MERCNELR-

(c) EEBHMEE
BIEMEMEEENIRS BHREE
“FNEERRBREKEER
IR ETE F F E6.235%F B
I A BR T 48.188,587,150/8 T 2. 1)
¥ WE R EREFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

32. DEFERRED TAXATION 32.

The following are the major deferred tax liability (asset)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

I EBLIE

AT RRAELBEFERER
TBREMBAGB (BE)UARE

prior years: B Ep
Accelerated
tax Tax Intangible
depreciation losses assets Total
&
REE REER EBREE st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FWA—H 11,195,599 (161,096) 1,351,385 12,385,888
Credit to profit or loss BALEER
for the year (3,306,788) - (379,180) (3,685,968)
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=f=1+—H 7,888,811 (161,096) 972,205 8,699,920
Credit to profit or loss BALFER
for the year (1,120,326) - (94,795) (1,215,121)
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=+-H 6,768,485 (161,096) 877,410 7,484,799

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$85,923,000 (2013:
HK$54,935,000) available to offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$976,000 (2013: HK$976,000) of the
tax losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$84,947,000
(2013: HK$53,959,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unused tax losses of HK$5,263,000,
HK$4,718,000 and HK$11,000,000 (2013: HK$4,718,000 and
HK$11,000,000) included in the unused tax losses at the end
of the reporting period will expire by 2018, 2017 and 2016
(2013: 2017 and 2016). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 32.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to HK$10,258,000 (2013: HK$12,092,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

LRSI :

EEBE ()

BEFBECERESRE PR
—EENF—H—H
FRERE 25 E Ik 2 ] EABM
TEFNFR o FR A AN S [ A 422 1) A B B
BARRG M ELBREER
O - BERREEEN KA RER
A] B 5 sk [0 - B ERNAR A B 7
& A FE10,258,0008 T (=&
— =4 :12,092,0007 7T ) 2 Bk

ERFHELEN AR E-

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. |7
Number of shares Share capital
BHEE B 2
HK$
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 FIREE0.05%5 T
(2013: HK$0.005) each —ZE—=%:0.005
BT 2 EEk
Authorised: JETE
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 RZZE—ZFMA—AK
—E—=F=H
=+—H 100,000,000,000 500,000,000
Share consolidation (note) f& 15 & 6F (K7aE) (90,000,000,000) -
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE—MFE=A
=+—H 10,000,000,000 500,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EBITREE:
At 1 April 2012 and 31 March 2013 RZE—ZFWMA—AK
—E—=F=HA
=+—H 10,193,545,600 50,967,728
Share consolidation (note) 1D & ot (K aE) (9,174,191,040) -
At 31 March 2014 R-ZZE—MFE=A
=+—H 1,019,354,560 50,967,728

Note:

Company's every 10 issued and unissued shares of par value
of HK$0.005 each are consolidated into 1 consolidated share

of par value of HK$0.05 each.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 5 April 2013, the

HiaE -

BER-_ZT—=FNAHEARBY
BRRZEZR  ARBE 100 FKRE
B0.0058 7t 2 B 81T R AR BEITR

n& Gt R IREE0.058 T2 & 0F

Btn o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

BE—F—pE=H=+—HIFF
34. EXTENSION OF PUT OPTION PERIOD

On 16 June 2009, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Neway Entertainment Limited (“Neway
Entertainment”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Neway Entertainment Group”) from Neway Enterprise
Holdings Limited (“Neway Enterprise”). At the same time,
Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, who has control over Neway
Enterprise, granted a put option (“Put Option”) to the Group,
exercisable at any time from the completion of the acquisition
("Completion”) to 1 July 2011 to require Dr. SUEK Chai Kit,
Christopher to buy back the entire equity interest in Neway
Entertainment Group at a consideration of HK$65,000,000
and any investment cost contributed by the Group after the
Completion. On 29 June 2011, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher,
agreed to extend the Put Option period to 1 July 2012. On 29
June 2012, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, further agreed to
extend the Put Option period to 1 April 2013. On 28 March
2013, Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, agreed to extend the Put
Option to 30 September 2013. On 30 September 2013, Dr.
SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher, agreed to extend the Put Option
to 31 March 2014. All other terms of the Put Option remained
unchanged.

At the special general meeting of the Company on 13
February 2014, the independent shareholders approved the
non-exercise of the Put Option. Accordingly, the Put Option is
lapsed on 31 March 2014.

The fair value of the Put Option has been re-measured on
the date of extension on 1 July 2012, 31 March 2013 and 30
September 2013 using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
at HK$58,102,788, HK$53,533,077 and HK$43,537,618,
respectively. The fair value of the Put Option upon the
extension of the Put Option period is considered as a deemed
contribution from the shareholder and is credited to reserve.
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34.

R4 R A

F_ggﬂiﬁﬂ+ﬁ5'$%
B 5 Neway Enterprise Holdings
Limited ([Neway Enterprise | ) U
fENeway Entertainment Limited
([Neway EntertainmentJ ) &
EHftBE A (47 [Neway
Entertamment’ilJ) =
Rz R —FHE HNeway
Enterprise8 % | # < BE B4 H +
MRS B T R4 Bk - AT R U
TR ([ER]EZF—F LA
— B BRI TTE - EKEEH
18 + 1A65,000,0007% 7T & 52 BX,
BAREEEGHRERNRNZKRE
BE BINeway Entertainmentf &2
HERAER - N _T——F A
Zt+hB - EERELREARE
HEARERE T ——F+tA
—H-RZE——FA=-+Ah
H - EEGIETE —FPRESRE
HEARERE_T—=F1A
—H TRZE—=F=ZA=+N
EBEAETRES R BAE
%ﬁkﬁi_;—ziﬂﬂf+
H-RZE—=FHA=1H &
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SHERREFT A E A IR R i T
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RARIREEFRIAS £ BIURE
HEE T TERROG BRAE « R L - 380h
HER_ZT—NF=ZA=+—H
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ROHBAEZATEERERE
AH(Bl—E—=—&+H—H"
T E—=F=ZA=1+—HkEkZ
T-—=ZFNA=TH)EREH
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34.

EXTENSION OF PUT OPTION PERIOD 34.
(Continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of the Put Option.

EREBHESE (&)

DA B33 T3 PR LA 51 B R R 2
AT

1 July 2012 31 March 2013 30 September 2013

—E--fF —E-=& —E-=§

tA-H =ZA=t-A NA=+H

Share price (Note j) W18 (H1ati) HK$8,831,000/87C  HK$14,439,00087C  HK$21,391,000/8 7T
Exercise price 1%E HK$67,000,000%7C  HK$68,000,000%7C  HK$65,000,000% 7T
Expected life of options EH RS 0.75 year & 0.5 year & 0.5 year
Expected volatility (note i) TEERIE (M) 40% 36% 30%
Expected dividend yield TR B % 0% 0% 0%
Risk free rate mERMNE 0.13% 1.38% 0.22%

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumption, including the volatility of
share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Notes:

(i) The share price is the equity value of Neway Entertainment,
which is determined based on the future discounted cashflow
of Neway Entertainment.

(ii) The expected volatility of the Put Option is based on the
historical daily share price movements of a set of comparable
companies over a historical period of 0.75 year for 1 July
2012, 0.5 year for 31 March 2013 and 30 September 2013.

BHREBEREXETHADE
EBER - BERELE- TRR
NBREBT KBS TE:E
it

[ET

(i) fi% f& ANeway Entertainment” #
= {B{E + Jh&Neway Entertainment
ZARRBERITEMETE

(i) ROmERRE 2 FEER IR T A — 4R A
HRARR-_ZE—=—FtA—H
BEOTSFEURKR T —=F=A
—t+-BRER-E-=ZFNA=1+H
BEROSFZRBASEREZSHA
o
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35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH PURCHASE OF A SUBSIDIARY

In July 2013, the Group completed the acquisition of 60%
equity interest in RERFEME. RFEFEME is principally
engaged in the property development in the PRC. This
transaction was for the purpose of acquiring properties under
development for sale in the ordinary course of business,
and has been accounted for as a purchase of assets and the
associated liabilities rather than as a business combination. The
Group has already paid the consideration of RMB1,200,000
and advanced a loan to F)5 & #E of RMB18,179,000
(approximately HK$24,227,000), which was classified as
“Deposits for investments” as at 31 March 2013.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

35. ZBBE—XMEBLT

WREERER

RZEBE—Z=ZFt A AEEZK
W g 8 B b EE60% I AR #E 45 o
FERMETERTRNEYE
R -ZEAXSEERBTER
BEPUBEHFEZRFYE BB
ARV BEEEENRABEAE ™
FEBEH NEBEINREA
R #1,200,000t M B2 ERAR
#18,179,0007T (424,227,000
BIL) FHRERHE WER-E
—=F=ZA=1+—HBzZ2HEA
(&I ®] -

RIERABHKBZEERERZ
BEMT:

HK$

BT

Property, plant and equipment W WE kEE 23,470

Other receivables e E] 1,209,699

Properties under development for sale &R P Y% 43,445,764

Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 186,746

Amount due to the Group JE S AN S (B FR (23,034,719)
Amount due to a non-controlling eI E HE

shareholder of &% & i & —Z IR R FRIB (17,763,825)

Other payables and accrued charges — Hth fE{S K E K FEETE A
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE T —F=A=+—HIFEF

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

35, ZEBBE—FRMELT

THROUGH PURCHASE OF A SUBSIDIARY WEBEENEE (&)
(Continued)
HK$
BT
Consideration paid in prior years BEFEENRE 1,520,527
Plus: Non-controlling interests (Note) ~ hl : JE¥RRR4E %5 (H74E) 1,013,685
Net assets acquired BlEEEFE 2,534,212

Note:  The non-controlling interests are determined by reference to
proportionate share of recognised amounts of assets acquired
and liabilities recognised of H/5EFEHZE at the date of
acquisition.

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

HiaE - Il TH2 RN B I
ZHRBEMEAENERZTIER
HMEB B2 IS L BIEESE

BWREEEELEZRERAFE:

HK$

BT

Cash consideration paid BENRESNRE -
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired J& : E WIBIR{TAH RIR S 186,746
186,746
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36. LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. HEHRIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REBHR REBRWEIZT
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- TR EHERENZ AR HIE
cancellable operating leases in respect of premises which fall THE FIEAVE R LA T BA R 2 BA 4%
due as follows: fif -
2014 2013
—E-NF ==
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —F K 13,331,798 12,504,756
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEFERFNA
(BIEEREME) 25,137,312 33,039,795
Over five years HBiBAF 47,990,308 48,237,865
86,459,418 93,782,416
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the ST E IR A EB A
Group for factory premises and staff quarters in the PRC. By IMOERETIESENZ
Leases for factory premises and staff quarters are negotiated He IRWENRBIBS 2
for terms of 1 to 50 years. Rentals are fixed for 1 to 50 years. EERBIBSOFAF-HEMNIE
S0 N & E & o
37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BEXREE
2014 2013
—E-MNEF —E—=F
HKS$ HK$
BT TT
Capital expenditure contracted for but LA T & EE 4B KTE
not provided in the consolidated REMBmRPIER
financial statements in respect of: s EXRAY
- acquisition of property, —EME BB R
plant and equipment B 2,001,083 3,168,370
— prepaid lease payments in the PRC -RHPBRZENEE
IR 13,128,205 13,142,976
15,129,288 16,311,346
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37.

38.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. EXREIE (&)
The Group’s share of the capital commitments made jointly AEFBH(FHEMEETFHES
with other joint venturer relating to its joint venture, Reliance Z /N A]Reliance Partner Limited#t
Partner Limited, is as follows: BIfEH 2 BEAAFENT
2014 2013
—E-—HNE —ZF—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Commitment to provide REIRRE Rz A
shareholders’ loan 36,000,000 -
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 38. EIKEBERIGTE

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme (“ORSO Scheme”) for certain qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the ORSO Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of the trustee. Contributions to the ORSO Scheme are at rates
specified in the rules of the ORSO Scheme. Where there are
employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting in full
in the contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

With effect from 1 December, 2000, the Group has also joined
a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions. Except for voluntary contribution, no forfeited
contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

AEBATEZETAERRE
B 17T E B SR K8 A 5T 2
([ORSO&t&I]) - ORSO:tH &I 2 &
ERETIAZSZEZSEE  BX
EBZEEDHARIE - ORSOTE|
2 HEF TR ORSOH &8l 2 R BIFTET
B2 LE RETE o fidifE B 7 A 28X
S ATE HORSOEH &) - B A&
E e 2 R AT R 8 W 2 3R
SRR D -

—EREFF+-_A-HE K
SENCRETBREZ M
e E ([BEetE]) -
BIETEERERFELTER
RPN R ME R TE R EE
2R - REeF S BERE
MERARBZEZSRKE  BEA%
Bz EESFBRIE - IRIFRTED AT
2 BEXREEBREBEZRATH
Z LR AR E S A EME L R
AEBEEMBRESHE2E—]
ERELREFL 2K BRE R
RN EBERRTES 8208
W B SA] A AR D SR AR 2

K
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For the year ended 31 March 2014
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38.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising
from the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent contributions payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying
employees in the PRC, the Group has participated in the
retirement benefits scheme operated by the local municipal
government of Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs to the scheme to
fund the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions to the
scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

At 31 March 2014 and 2013, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees leaving
the schemes before they are fully vested in the contributions
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in the future.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BEALTRS
(a)  Apart from the amount due from a related company (a) BMaE27FMEEREIR—X
as disclosed in note 27 and the transaction as detailed REE N R IE A R s34
in note 34, during the year, the Group has significant HM TG0 FRAEE
transactions between related parties and subsidiaries of BHETEE AT EAN T
the Company as follows: BAREIT NI ZIEERR
5
2014 2013
—E-0F —E—=FF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Promotion service fee income  #ERISE A
(Note) (B1at) 4,003,600 6,066,780
Licensed fee income (Note) BB WA (Hi7) 1,040,000 1,695,000
Sales of goods (Note) HESEm(MaE) 273,490 513,490
Office rental expenses (Note) WAERERAL (Hit) 360,000 360,000
Note: The transactions were carried out with Neway Karaoke Hrit: ZEXHhEbE GRS
Box Limited and its subsidiaries which are controlled T % %l 2 Neway Karaoke
by Dr. SUEK Chai Kit, Christopher. Box Limited 5 H [ /& 22 7]
HETTe
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) ETEEIEAB RN
The remuneration of directors and other members of UTAESRAEMTIEEE
key management during the year was as follows: ABRFRNZH:
2014 2013
—E-NF ==
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Short-term benefits %2 #ptE A 9,354,492 8,778,201
Post-employment benefits BER 2 12 T 220,250 222,150
9,574,742 9,000,351
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEEREFETBAE ZE M
determined by the remuneration committee having THFMEESRENAL
regard to the performance of individuals and market ZREBEMSBEET -
trends.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. EXEBER

40.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

R BB H B R ARE (R AR [E]
ETEERBERELE RKESB
MR RIFMERE LD TE &8
= A AR -
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BE—F—pE=H=+—HIFF
40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

41.

42,

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes borrowings disclosed in note 31, net of cash and
cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and
the risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues, repurchase
of shares and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the
existing debt.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2013, the purchase consideration of property,
plant and equipment amounting to HK$4,430,418 was
remained unsettled and included in other payables and
accruals. The balance was settled during the year ended 31
March 2014.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 9 May 2014, Brilliant Wise International Limited (“Brilliant
Wise”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of the Group's equity interest in unlisted
equity securities incorporated in the Republic of Korea at a
cash consideration of HK$7,500,000. The disposal has not
been completed as at the date of authorisation for issue of
these consolidated financial statements.

On 18 June 2014, FITH EBR R EHRBGRAAF ("F £
BU2% "), the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, initiated
civil proceedings against FIEFEHIE in the FYITEZE A
RJEBT (“People’s Court of Baoan District”) for the repayment
of the shareholder’s loan contributed by # 2B in the
amount of RMB23,479,330. On 19 June 2014, pursuant to an
application made by F 2 Bl &% to freeze and preserve assets of
FRIEEHIE in the total value of RMB23,400,000, an order was
granted by the People’s Court of Baoan District to freeze and
preserve two parcels of land owned by # & B #E during the
period from 24 June 2014 to 23 June 2016 ("Freeze Order”).
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Freeze
Order is for the purpose of securing the Group's rights to
ensure that /& FEHIE has sufficient assets of value to repay
the shareholder’s loan to the Group.
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41.

42.
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B{TJE/A\EZ%’%
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 March AANBIMBARN —E—NF=
2014 and 31 March 2013. A=+—BEZE—Z=ZF=A
=+—RzHE-
Effective percentage
Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
ARRRECRT
BB/ BfERT/ BRAE/EMER
WEARERE it 2 HRl e ERBEAL FEER
2014 2013
“E-mE -—T-=F
% %
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
("BVI")
Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited EEEAHE 10,000 7T & @ % 100 100 REZK
Chung Tai Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
HK$500,000
deferred non-voting
HARHRIBR AT B 1,0008 T B%R 100 100 ®ERR
500,000/ 75
BRZBETER
The Greatime Printing (Shenzhen) The PRC HK$12,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
Co., Ltd. (note 1) registered capital printing
HERER ORI BRAE (Hiat1) s 12,000,000/ 7T 100 100 BE R R
BARER (BR)BRATF The PRC HK$72,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 1) registered capital
RARHR (BR)BRAA (A1) H 72,000,000 7T 100 100 EEZK
HER
HEADR (FR)ERAF The PRC HK$10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 1) registered capital
HAER (FR)BRAR (1) i 10,000,000/ 7T 100 100 EEEE
AMER
AIBERARER AR (ote 1) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Inactive
registered capital
RYEERARMERDR (H1) s AEH1,000,0007 100 100 EEEE
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective percentage

43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KARFECRT
gL/ B@ERT/ BA/EMEE
WEARER o ff i B A AR A EREAL TEEHR
2014 2013
“®-BE -—T-=F%
% %
SR CRI)BRAA The PRC HK$30,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
(note 1) registered capital printing
SR CRI)BRAF i 30,000,00078 T 100 100 BRERFAEDR
(Hizt1) HMEX
IEERRERNH (RY)BRAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 1) registered capital
JEERREZA (RI)ERRA e AR #1,000,0007 100 100 REER
(Wizt1) AMER
RYTHRAREEAERAH The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
(note 3) registered capital
AT hAREXAERAT hE AR #2,000,0007 100 100 REER
(Hii#3) AR
BT ERREERARAT The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 4) registered capital
BUHMEERREERERAA hE AR #20,000,0007T 100 100 EEXHK
(Hiita) Balli-v
Chung Tai Printing (China) Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Label and offset
Company Limited HK$10,000 deferred printing
non-voting
hREDR (R E) BRAF BE 1,000/ 7T & R 100 100 RERFAEDR
10,0007% 7T
ERZEEER
h ERAER (R BB The PRC HK$98,000,000 100 100 Label and offset
(note 1) registered capital printing
th 2t REDR| CRIN) BRAR e 98,000,000/ 7 100 100 FHERFAAER
(1) AMEX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective percentage

43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMEERT
gL/ B@ERT/ BA/EMEE
WEARER Eliphs A AR A EREAL TEXRH
2014 2013
“B-mF -T-ZF
% %
The Greatime Offset Printing Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Company, Limited HK$1,000,000
deferred non-voting
BAWAEDRERLA BB 1,000/ 7T & B 100 100 EEXH
1,000,000% 7T
ERZEELTR
Delight Source Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000 ordinary 100 100 Trading of advertising
materials
SMAERLT B 200,000/ 70 & &K 100 100 EERSMH
Profit Link Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Property investment
HK$2 deferred
non-voting
PAREEEEBRAA & 100870 & @K 100 100 #MERE
2ET
ERZEETK
Chung Tai Investment & Development Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Co., Limited
HARREERBBRAA BA BT E Bk 100 100 #®EER
Chung Tai Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
HK$2 deferred
non-voting
PAEEBRAT BB 100870 & A& 100 100 EEEXH
2B
ERFEEER
Chung Tai Packaging Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
PABKBRAT B 10,0007 7 & 100 100 EEXH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. B AR 2515 (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMEERT
gL/ B@ERT/ BA/EMEE
WEARER Eliphs A AR A EREAL TEEHR
2014 2013
“B-mF -T-ZF
% %
Brilliant Wise International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Brilliant Wise International Limited RERAES 1ETEBR 100 100 ®EERK
Gain Capital International Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Gain Capital International Limited RERIHES 1ETERR 100 100 REZK
General Star Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
BEEZERAA & 1BTERKR 100 100 EEEH
Neway Entertainment Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Neway Entertainment Limited EBRAHS 1ETERR 100 100 ®EZR
Star Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Inactive
EREBRAT] &b 1BTERKR 100 100 EEEH
Star Entertainment (Universe) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
management and
music licensing
services and sales of
music albums
ERZ (RT)ERLA &b BT E AR 100 100 REEAEER
BEETRER
HESLER
Neway Star Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of music
licensing services,
sales of music
albums and
investment holding
HRREIRERLA &k 10,0008 7T & B 100 100 RESLFFRE
HEBLBEAR
REAZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective percentage

43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMEERT
HMEKL B@ERT/ BA/EMEE
WEARER Eliphs A AR A EREAL TEXRH
2014 2013
“B-mF -T-ZF
% %
Sansible Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
RERARAT &8 10,0007 7T & &K 100 100 EEEH
Neway Star Pictures Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Inactive
MRRYERFBERARF B 10,0008 7T & & 100 100 EEXH
Neway Star Music Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Inactive
MR T REUERR AT & 10,0007 7T & &K 100 100 EEXH
Neway Star Artiste Management Hong Kong HK10,000 Ordinary 100 100 Provision of artistes
Limited management
services
MERBRERARAA &b 10,000 7L & B 100 100 REBAERRE
SmartMax International Limited BVI US$1 Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
SmartMax International Limited RERZES (Eb:-Fil 100 100 REZR
Showtimes (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
RERR (TN BRAF &b AT ERR 100 100 EEXH
Dream Class Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
Dream Class Limited RERUEE 50,0005 7T & &k 100 100 EEXH
Power Rank International Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Power Rank International Limited RERTES 50,0003 7T & & R 100 100 ®EZER
Hero Chance Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Hero Chance Limited REREE 50,0005 7T & Bk 100 100 REZR
Victor Glory Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Victor Glory Limited HERTES 50,0005 7T £ R 100 100 ®EER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43,
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective percentage

43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMEERT
gL/ B@ERT/ BA/EMEE
WEARER Eliphs A AR A EREAL TEXRH
2014 2013
“B-mF -T-ZF
% %
Golden Richland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
TEARLT &8 10,0007 7T & &K 100 100 EEEH
Nation Profit Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
MFEBRAF BB 10,0008 7T & & 100 100 REZR
Star Rank Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Star Rank Limited RERES 50,000% T & @Mk 100 100 BREER
Max Synergy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
EEERAA R 10,0008 7T & B 100 100 EEXH
Selection Goal Limited BVI US$1 ordinary 100 N/A  Investment holding
Selection Goal Limited RERAES 1ETEBR 100° TER RERK
Neway Group Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
hEERARRA &R 1BTERR 100 100 EEXK
Troupe Magnesium Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 ordinary 65 65  Investmentin
Limited drama show
BREREHARAT B 10,0008 7T & & 65 65 RAERE
Kingbay Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Securities trading
AAREARAR &g BT ERR 100 100 E&EES
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited EBELES 50,0003 7t & & 100 100 #REZR
Fruitful Global Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
SERRBRAT & AT ERR 100 100 EEXH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective percentage

43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
EARMEERT
HMEKL B@ERT/ BA/EMEE
WEARER Eliphs EMRE EREAL TEXRH
2014 2013
“B-mF -T-ZF
% %
Grand Prospects Finance Hong Kong HK$100,000 ordinary 100 100 Money lending
International Limited
ERMBERERLA B 100,000/ 7T & &M 100 100 HE
Neway Investments Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
hEREARARAA &iE BT ERR 100 100 EEEH
Star Digital International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Inactive
EREBERAT B BT ERR 100 100 EEXH
Luxury Field Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Luxury Field Limited RBRIES 50,000 7T & R 100 100 B®EER
Marble Arch Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
EERAERERRA 3 1BTEBRR 100 100 REER
Pacific Olive Limited BVI US$50,000 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
Pacific Olive Limited RERNEE 50,000% T & &K 100 100 REZR
Fabulous Star Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
ERRERRAT 0 1BTERR 100 100 REARK
AmH EEEREXRERAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 2) registered capital
Am EERREZRARAA E AR #1,000,00070 100 100 EEEH
(Hiz#2) AMER
TP EEERERERRAR The PRC US$20,000,000 100¢ - Finandial leasing
(note 1) registered capital
LRTEREREHERRAT PE 20,000,000% 7T 100 - ®AEE
(Hizt1) AMEX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. B AR 2515 (&)

Effective percentage

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KARFECRT
gL/ BACRT/ BA/EMEE
WEAR AR o ff i B A AR A ERES TEEHR
2014 2013
“®-BE -—T-=F%
% %
PERY (LR) LEEBRAR The PRC RMB3,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 5) registered capital
PERY (LR) LEEARAR " AR #3,000,0007 100 100 EEXK
(Hiit5) AMEX
PERE (L) REBRRA The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Inactive
(note 6) registered capital
PERE (LR REBRRT " AR%10,000,0007T 100 100 EEXK
(Hizte) HMEX
H E BB (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 - Investment holding
registered capital
hERE (H:2) i AR%2,000,0007 100¢ - REER
AMEX
RERHE (note 2) The PRC RMB2,000,000 60* - Property development
registered capital
PERWE (Hit2) i AR %2,000,0007 60* - DEER
AMEX
PERBREZR (LR)BRAR The PRC US$500,000 100° - Inactive
(note 1) registered capital
PERBREER (LR)BRAR " 500,000 T 100¢ - EEEH
(Hizt1) AMEX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Effective percentage

43. MEBRTRZF%E (#&)

Place of Paidup  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ issued/registered registered capital held
Name of subsidiary registration share capital by the Company Principal activities
KARFECRT
HRARL/ BACRT/ B&/EMEE
WEAR AR o ff i B AR A ERES TEEHR
2014 2013
“®-BE -—T-=F%
% %
HEZBESZA (RINBRAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 100* - Investment holding
(note 1) registered capital
ERRESHA(RI)BERAR i AE#1,000,00070 100 - REBER
(Hizt1) AMEX
PERBESHNA R BRAR The PRC RMB2,000,000 100¢ - Inactive
(note 1) registered capital
PEREEREARINERRA E AR #2,000,0007 100 - EEXK
(Hizt1) AMEX
# These subsidiaries are newly incorporated during year ended # ZEWB R AR 2 —F—NF=
31 March 2014. H=F—HIFFEFZMEL -
* The subsidiary is acquired during year ended 31 March 2014. * ZWERAREE—FE—WF=H
Details are set out in note 35. = —HIFFEWE  FIEHR N
i35 o
Notes: Hat -
(1) These subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the (1) ZEMBABTIHRBZINEGBEE B
PRC. o
() These subsidiaries are domestic-invested enterprises ) ZENB AR IRFRBEKZZ AE
established in the PRC. e
(3) This subsidiary is domestic enterprises with limited liabilities (3) ZHB AR IR 2 ERE

established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by Z<% & and
#(5k 8 who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 50% and

50% respectively.

FRERE -ZMBERARIBARAR]
BRFSHMEKERIZANE
PRESE FTEERBKRS 5
HHZMEBABS0%EE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes.: (Continued)

(4) This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by & &% and
f#$% % who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 50% and
50% respectively.

(5) This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by ##/)\% and
HEEE who hold the interest in the subsidiary of 66.67% and
33.33% respectively.

(6) This subsidiary is domestic enterprise with limited liabilities
established in the PRC. The subsidiary is indirectly held by the
Company through the contractual arrangement by #H/]N&,
gE 4t and FRJEEL who hold the interest in the subsidiary of
20%, 40% and 40% respectively.

All operations are carried out in Hong Kong and the PRC.

With the exception of Chung Tai Printing Holdings Limited,
Brilliant Wise International Limited, Gain Capital International
Limited, SmartMax International Limited, Dream Class Limited
and Galaxy Way Enterprise Limited which are directly owned
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly owned by
the Company.

The deferred non-voting shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no rights to dividends nor to receive
notice of nor to attend or vote at any general meeting of the
relevant companies or to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

Hret e (A8)

(@ ZBARTIRFABER L2 BERE
ERERE -ZHBARAARDF
FEREEENRGREFTZANR
BEESE BEERRBR D
F5 B %M B A RI50% M & o

(5) ZWBRARIRFEK I BRE
ERERE - ZMBRARBARRAR]
ERENARABRRIZEHE
RESE B AERABRRD 5
B %M B A F66.67% 533.33%
e

(6) ZMBRRIRBEKRIZAR
BEERBELE -ZMBATAAR
BE BN B MRS E
FRIZ AR ERERH  BE -
B R RIE B R EZMB A
A]20% ~ 40% K2 40% 5

FIERBIENEENRBET

BxChung Tai Printing Holdings
Limited Brilliant Wise
International Limited~Gain Capital
International Limited - SmartMax
International LimitedDream Class
Limited ;&2 Galaxy Way Enterprise
Limited B N R R E AN I
BEMWBRARIBARAIRER
ﬁ o

BERERELER (FRAAXKER
B)EE LY EHARENERRS
REREBARIZERAGEE
SHEFEERBRREHNE LR
2 HARNBEREZETADIK-

Y 8 2 B0 R 4R Bk IR AR B
MELTHERER 2 EHES-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

43. MEBRRZF1%E (F)

TRETHEAERFERERZ
AEBIF2EMBRRFE:

interests:
Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests
and principal and voting rights held by Loss allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiaries place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests controlling interests
BB HR FERERET
HEAREE TEERBE BEREGERREEZLS SREFEREZCER R FERER
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-QmE -T-=F ZB-OF ~“T-=F ZB-NE -"T-=F
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
HERE PRC 40% - (729,913) - 87,574 -
hERME i

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests

BRFEERERZERFER
il =PNG]

(3,937) (18,787) (199,886) (195,949)

(733,850) (18,787) (112,312) (195,949)

Summarised financial information for the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013 in respect of the Group’s subsidiaries
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.

A EAEERE R 2 AN & B W
BRAIBE_ZT—NWFEER_-F
—=F=A=t—-BILFEZH
ZHHERETIT - LA EE
BE R AREL EE AR B EH
SHAT 2 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. MIB AR Z&#1E (&)
FEEME FERHE
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Non-current assets ERBEE 14,174 -
Current assets mBEE 43,700,709 -
Current liabilities nBEaE (48,230,310) -
Total equity T A RE (4,515,427) -
Equity attributable to the owners of FEEHERESA
5 B i fEh e (2,709,256) -
Non-controlling interests of PR E 2 FFIERE R
B FEHE (1,806,171) -
(4,515,427) -
Expenses 53 (1,824,781) -
Loss for the period since acquisition B W AR 2 AN B 18 (1,824,781) -
Other comprehensive income B Y LA R 2 ZN B,
for the period since acquisition 2mEUA (490,495) -
Total comprehensive expense BUEL R 2 A2 H
for the period since acquisition F S 4a %8 (2,315,276) -
Loss for the period since acquisition AT ATEMLBEE
attributable to LASR 2 ZN B 5 48
— the owners of —HEEHEREAR A
PR E (1,094,868) -
— non-controlling interests of —HEEHE
FIEREHE IR (729,913) -
Loss for the period since acquisition B U B DA 2R 2 N EA RS 18 (1,824,781) -
Other comprehensive expense for the A~ A LG B U3E
period since acquisition attributable PASR 2 AN BRE 4 28
to =
— the owners of —FIEEHEEF A
PR E (294,297) -
— non-controlling interests of —HEFEHE
5 B i E FEFE M & (196,198) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R

For the year ended 31 March 2014
BE—T—F=A=+—HIFEF

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. MIB AR 2515 (&)

HEFE it & (Continued) hEREME (&)
2014 2013
—2-HmEF —F-=
HKS HKS
BT BT
Other comprehensive expense for the B W BE A 2K 2 R ERE b
period since acquisition 2HEFY (490,495) -
Total comprehensive expense for the AT~ AT B UWE
period since acquisition attributable AR 2 RER 2 E X
to 4%
— the owners of —hIEEHEREB A
I EHE (1,389,165) -
— non-controlling interests of —HEFEME
BB HE FEFE AR (926,111) -
Total comprehensive expense for the AU AR 2 RE 2 H
period since acquisition 2 4858 (2,315,276) -
Net cash outflow from KEXBRERS
operating activities DitsEbE = (2,296,067) -
Net cash inflow from MEFRBAERS
financing activities MAFRE 2,376,268 -
Net cash inflow REemAFE 80,201 -
Dividend paid to non-controlling ERRIEREME
shareholder of FEPERR IR R AR B

B B E - -
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Five-year Financial Summary

EFEHBEHE

RESULTS E 4
For the year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLEE
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-FF —T——% T —FT-=-F ZB-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET FAET FHET F#ET
Revenue W %5 569,016 678,246 660,687 643,749 613,269
Profit (loss) before Fr 75 B & A
taxation (E8) 63,166 54,552 (54,862) 3,463 (20,531)
Taxation HIE (2,953) (7,667) (1,253) (1,810) (1,219)
Profit (loss) for the year — ANF3m A (E18) 60,213 46,885 (56,115) 1,653 (21,750)
Attributable to: JEAf :
Owners of Vi NN
the Company wE A 60,213 46,885 (55,938) 1,672 (21,016)
Non-controlling interests  FE3EAEHE RS - - (177) (19) (734)
60,213 46,885 (56,115) 1,653 (21,750)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
At 31 March
R=A=+—H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
—E-%F —T——% T —FT-=-F ZB-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets EERE 896,267 956,802 883,671 881,998 897,928
Total liabilities BERTE 87,562 105,926 97,428 87,837 125,160
Total equity B 808,705 850,876 786,243 794,161 772,768
Equity attributable to VN/NEIEZ SN
owners of the Company  JE{H#E# 808,705 850,876 786,420 794,357 772,880
Non-controlling interests  FF4% A% #EE 25 - - (177) (196) (112)
808,705 850,876 786,243 794,161 772,768
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Neway Group Holdings Limited
PESEZRARLT

—

Chung Tai Printing Group Building,11 Yip Cheong Street,
On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, N.T., H.K.
EENERTETENEGHNSEPREODRIEBRE

Tel E5E: (852) 2669 6111 Fax {HK.: (852) 2677 6556
Website #81it: www.newaygroup.com.hk
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